
The Mission of City Government is to provide essential, quality public services in  
support of the livability, safety and viability of the Dundee community.  

Action Required: Motion to Accept the Consent Agenda

Action Required

Discussion

Discussion

Discussion
   

Action Required

Action Required

Action Required

Discussion

Action Required

mailto:Dundeecity3@comcast.net


 2 

8. Council Concerns & Committee Reports 
 
9. Mayor’s Report 

 
10.   City Administrator Report 
  
11. Public Comment: Each speaker will be allowed up to 5 minutes to speak after being recognized by 

the Mayor. Out of courtesy for the speaker, please refrain from talking. 
 
12. Executive Session: In accordance with ORS 192.660 (2)(h) to consult with counsel concerning the 

legal rights and duties of a public body with regard to current litigation or litigation likely to be filed. 
 
13. Adjourn 
 
********************************************************************************************************************** 

 
Pending Business: 

1. Public Works 
1.1  Water Master Plan Update 
1.2 Highway 99W Sidewalk/Streetscape 
1.3 Inflow & Infiltration Program 

 
2. Planning/Land Use 

2.1 Dundee Riverside Master Plan – Future Actions 
2.2 Exterior Lighting – Code Update/Street Light Standards 
2.3 Industrial Zone Standards 
2.4 Marijuana Facilities 
 

3. City Council 
3.1    Update SDC Methodologies 
3.2    LID 2013-01 Final Assessment Ordinance 
3.3    Urban Renewal Feasibility Study 
3.4    Marijuana Dispensary Licensing 

 
4. Parks & Trails 
 4.1  Viewmont Greenway Park Improvement 
 4.2  Harvey Creek Trail Property Rehabilitation 
 4.3  WWTP Nature Park Grant Application 
 
5. Next Available Ordinance & Resolution No’s. 
 5.1  Ordinance No. 545-2016 
 5.2  Resolution No. 2016-01 
   
The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing 
impaired, or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities, should be made at least 48 hours in 
advance of the meeting to the Assistant City Recorder at City Hall (503) 538-3922.  
 



 1 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
TABLE OF CONTENTS FOR MINUTES 

January 5, 2016 
 

Call to Order ........................................................................................................................... 2 
Council and Staff Attendance ................................................................................................... 2 
Public Attendance ................................................................................................................... 2 
Agenda Changes: .................................................................................................................... 2 
Public Comment: ..................................................................................................................... 2 
Presentation: .......................................................................................................................... 2 

Review of Annual Audit ..................................................................................................... 2 
Yamhill County Mediators .................................................................................................. 3 

Consent Agenda ...................................................................................................................... 3 
Old Business ........................................................................................................................... 3 

Urban Renewal Feasibility Study ........................................................................................ 3 
Basin 3 Storm Water Improvements .................................................................................. 5 
Ordinance No. 544-2016, Sign Code Amendments .............................................................. 6 

New Business ......................................................................................................................... 6 
WWTP Overflow Event ...................................................................................................... 6 
Riverside District Zone ...................................................................................................... 8 
Planning Commission Appointment .................................................................................... 8 
Tourism Committee Appointments ..................................................................................... 8 

Council Concerns and Committee Reports ................................................................................. 8 
Mayor’s Report........................................................................................................................ 8 
City Administrator’s Report ...................................................................................................... 8 
Public Comment: ..................................................................................................................... 8 
Executive Session: .................................................................................................................. 9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

City of Dundee 
City Council Meeting Minutes 

January 5, 2016 
Call to Order  
Mayor Russ called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 
 
Council and Staff Attendance  
Present: Mayor David Russ, Councilors Ted Crawford, Storr Nelson, Doug Pugsley, Kristen 
Svicarovich, and Tim Weaver. Excused Absence: Councilor Jeannette Adlong. Staff members: 
Rob Daykin, City Administrator, Shelby Rihala, City Attorney, and City Engineer Greg Reid. 
 
Public Attendance   
Jason Rapp, David Heikkinen, Marlena Bertram, Preston Van Meter, Kennedy Jenks, and 
Michael Humm, Kennedy Jenks. 
    
Agenda Changes:  
None. 
 
Public Comment: 
Jason Rapp, 21255 NE Neiderberger Road, advised the Council of flooding on his property 
caused from Fir Court storm water runoff. This is part of the Charles Street flooding issues. Rapp 
does not agree with the assessment of the deficiencies. He noted the city improvements on the 
south Fir Court cul-de-sac have not helped with flooding. He expressed concern that no one from 
the city contacted him. Mayor Russ clarified the Council would be addressing diversion of water 
from Eleventh Street which is adding to the downhill issues.  
 
Presentation:                 

Review of Annual Audit 
Ryan Pasquarella, CPA, Grove Mueller & Swank, P.C., addressed the Annual Financial Report 
Year Ended June 30, 2015. The auditors completed two audits: the annual financial audit required 
by the State of Oregon and a single, federal compliance audit related to the fire hall funding. 
There were no findings/issues in regards to the federal compliance audit. Pasquarella noted the 
annual audit was clean with no corrections to the financial records. He referred to the loan 
agreements which require the city to meet generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), not 
on the modified cash basis which the city uses primarily because of the lack of accurate historical 
capital asset records. The audit report cited the loans require GAAP reporting and the city is not 
reporting that way. Currently, the State of Oregon allows the modified cash basis of accounting, 
but the expectation is that GAAP reporting will probably be required in about five years. 
Councilor Nelson inquired when this becomes a requirement, will the records start from that point 
forward or historical. Pasquarella replied historically, capital assets were required to be shown as 
of 1984. An equipment schedule can be recreated. Cost of infrastructure is the issue; which would 
have to be recreated by an appraiser. The auditors have been assured that there will be assistance 
available to the cities at that time.  
 
The financial analysis is a report of the city’s health (distributed to the Council):  

1. General Fund increased annually until 2015 when it decreased primarily due to expenses 
for the Fire Hall; expenditures are exceeding revenues collected but transfers into the 
fund from other funds are offsetting the deficit.  



 3 

2. Water Fund and Water Capital Improvement Fund is increasing from previous years, 
with a good carryover balance and has excess which can be transferred to capital 
improvement fund for future projects.  

3. Sewer Fund fluctuated with the construction of the Waste Water Treatment Plant 
(WWTP), it is improving; but the debt ratio is low and may mean that the city is not 
saving enough for future capital improvements. 

 
Yamhill County Mediators 

Marlene Bertram, Yamhill County Mediators, distributed a brochure and a letter dated January 5, 
2016 reviewing services provided to Dundee residents during the eleven months of 2015. They 
thanked the Council for their support.  
 
Consent Agenda 
The motion was made and seconded to approve Consent Agenda items 6.1 City Council Minutes, 
December 1, 2015, 6.2 Financial Report Ending November 30, 2015, and 6.3 OLCC Liquor 
License Application, Rizzo Winery. The motion passed unanimously.  
 
Old Business 

Urban Renewal Feasibility Study 
Jennie Messmer, Mid-Willamette Valley Council of Governments, presented a PowerPoint 
overview of the feasibility study included in the packet. The study’s purpose was to: 

• examine local conditions and key elements necessary to create an Urban Renewal District 
• consider whether a district in Dundee would be in accordance with the Oregon Statutes 
• consider if it would be feasible from a financial and policy standpoint 
• identify preliminary boundary; two were identified 
• determine if revenues will be adequate to cover improvements under consideration 
• determine if Dundee is a good fit for Urban Renewal  

The boundaries identified meet the requirements in ORS 457, the needs of Dundee are consistent 
with Urban Renewal and there appears to be sufficient revenues to be used to leverage other 
revenue sources. The recommended Concept Area is #2; it includes: multiple undeveloped 
properties including significant Highway 99W frontage properties, vacant store fronts and vacant 
and underused parcels which meet the blight conditions, the absence of a city center, obsolete and 
deteriorating buildings, residential dwellings in use on commercially zoned lots, small 
commercial property lots, and substandard streets. Improvements which may be considered 
include: street and sidewalks, water lines, storm water lines, sewer lines, expanding the façade 
grant program, undergrounding overhead utilities, a community plaza, public parking, walking 
trails, and consolidating undersized/underdeveloped properties. Messmer noted, for Area #2, you 
could raise $3.7 million in twenty years if you did not factor in any new development; you could 
raise $8.3 million if you factored in a 3% annual increase in assessed value derived from new 
development starting in 2017. A list of possible projects and their total cost is included in the 
report. Messmer referred to the letter from City Attorney Watts recommending addressing the 
Charter issues prior to setting up an Urban Renewal Agency. An Urban Renewal District would 
have to be referred to the voters for approval per the current Charter. The Council will determine 
whether to proceed with development of an Urban Renewal District and how to address the 
Charter issues prior to moving forward with a district. An Urban Renewal Agency would be a 
separate entity from the city and would develop the plan. The board would be the Council 
members and five additional directors per the current Charter. Plan components include: 
description of the projects to be undertaken, an outline of the major project activities planned for 
the area, map and legal description, an explanation of how the plan relates to local objectives, 
discussion of the relevant objectives of the local comprehensive plan and other council adopted 
related plans, indication of proposed land uses, maximum densities and building requirements for 



 4 

the area, reference to the Comprehensive Plan and implementing ordinances, description of 
relocation methods, a description of property to be acquired, and the maximum amount of 
indebtedness if using tax increment financing. Minimum public involvement requirements: two 
opportunities for the public to review the plan and give input, the plan must be sent to the 
governing bodies of the affected taxing jurisdictions, and notice of the plan adoption must be 
published within four days. Messmer recommended getting the public involved with a public 
hearing for information on Urban Renewal, open houses, website information, an advisory 
committee for development of the plan, etc.  
 
C. Nelson inquired why the school and Billick Park were included in the areas. City 
Administrator Daykin replied for crosswalk and undergrounding improvements. He stressed the 
feasibility study was to determine if this is right for Dundee, with a focus on the Highway 99W 
corridor. The area boundaries will likely change when an actual plan is developed using a more 
extensive public input process. Councilor Crawford questioned the exclusion of Argyle Winery 
and Wine by Joe. Messmer stated the fully developed properties were excluded to allow the city 
and the other taxing districts to realize the taxes on those properties. If they were included the 
properties would be frozen at their current value. They can be added to the plan. Mayor Russ 
expressed support for a storm water retention area at the end of Fourth Street.  
 
C. A. Daykin asked if the Council wants to move forward to form an Urban Renewal Agency. 
The first step would be to consider a Charter amendment. Councilor Pugsley expressed concern 
to address the issue with the other taxing districts. Mayor Russ noted the amounts that the taxing 
districts will not receive is based on a 3% increase in values over the twenty year period; they will 
be reimbursed in a short amount of time due to the significant increase in value with development 
in the district. C. Nelson inquired if the districts would be penalized more if things do not go well 
with a district. Russ confirmed it could happen; but noted the city is looking at significant future 
growth for the entire City that will offset the frozen base in the smaller urban renewal area. 
Nelson asked City Engineer Van Meter’s opinion on the City of Keizer’s Urban Renewal District. 
Van Meter expressed concern for the taxing districts affected by the Urban Renewal District. He 
noted that Keizer’s Urban Renewal District was essential in transforming the River Road corridor 
and facilitating economic development, but went on forever; heavily impacting the Keizer Fire 
District. The majority consensus was to move forward.  
 
C. A. Daykin referred to the options to amend the Charter (packet page 42): 

1. Repeal Chapter XI; most cities do not have charter provisions limiting the authority 
provided by ORS 457 or require a separate vote. 

2. Impose limitations not in conflict with the State statutes. 
3. One public vote on the plan; could be a harder route since the City has not previously 

implemented urban renewal. 
The work must be completed in February for a Charter revision on the May ballot.  
 
C. Crawford asked the Council if the city needed custom provisions or was good following State 
statutes. He supported aligning with the State statutes. Councilor Svicarovich expressed concern 
that the key will be informing and educating the public. Going back to the State standard is clear 
compared to repealing part of the Charter.  
 
C.A. Daykin stated the question if a public vote is desired; then what should the public vote be 
on. A plan could take a year to create at an estimated cost of $14,000 and then be voted down. 
The question was asked if a vote to form an agency could be placed on the ballot. Messmer 
replied creating the agency could be voted on. She expressed concern with use of the study as 
basis to form the agency; significant changes from the study to a plan would be a problem for the 
city. Mayor Russ suggested a vote could be if the public wants to create an Urban Renewal 



 5 

Agency; not based on any studies. Daykin suggested if the Council wants to go one vote; then 
vote for a plan so the public understands clearly what they are voting for. Under State statute the 
adoption of an ordinance is required to setup the agency; and the ordinance would be subject to 
the referendum process.  
 
C. Pugsley inquired if there are other areas of the Charter which need to be amended. Daykin 
replied that would be a larger project and would take more time to complete. A full charter update 
could address past problems with indebtedness revisions, special meeting wording, and possibly 
other items to update.   
 
C. Nelson questioned why this couldn’t be placed on the November ballot. Daykin replied 
nothing can be done to start Urban Renewal until the Charter is amended. It is a question of 
timing in regards to forming the agency and collecting the taxes to fund the improvements needed 
to support private development in the area. He estimated a July deadline for adoption of a plan in 
order to start the collection of tax revenues in the ensuing November tax levy. Mayor Russ 
confirmed that moving an amendment to the November election could put the plan out more than 
a year. Daykin relayed the desire for a Charter amendment in May 2016, moving forward with the 
plan by hiring a consultant and proceeding through the public input process with the possibility 
for a vote, if required, on the plan in May 2017, if approved you would be ready for the 
November 2017 tax levy. He suggested a Charter revision eliminating a mandatory public vote; 
but requiring a public vote if it exceeds certain limitations such as a ten year time limit for debt. 
After further discussion the majority consensus was to move ahead with a Charter amendment to 
remove conflicts with State law, establish a limitation on the maximum amount of debt that can 
be issued, and a threshold for the plan which requires a public vote when exceeded. Daykin stated 
he will draft a short version that describes the limitations in one section and a long version that 
encompasses edits to all sections of Chapter XI for review at the February 2nd meeting.  
 

Basin 3 Storm Water Improvements 
Engineer Reid advised that surcharged flow from Myrtle Street is backing water into Charles 
Street. Water flows in the culvert under Eleventh Street, across the orchard, to the back of Fir 
Court, across the Rapp property to the back of Charles Street, (Current Deficiencies map packet 
page 95). After discussion with homeowners on Charles Street and Michael Humm, Kennedy 
Jenks, Engineer Reid advised that the recommendation to redirect the Eleventh Street flow 
($38,260) will not solve the problem. The issue is the flow from Eleventh to Charles is twice 
what the fifteen inch pipe on Myrtle Street can handle. We need to get the water off of Charles 
Street across Neiderberger Road. The engineer’s recommendation is to pipe the water across 
Charles Street, place an inlet and ditch to collect the water flow from the county, and improve the 
ditch along the south side of Neiderberger Road to the outlet by Highway 99W at an estimated 
cost of $51,425. 
 
Mayor Russ inquired the capacity of the thirty inch pipe which runs down Eleventh Street. Reid 
advised it has a lot of capacity, with an overflow basin. Russ asked if the flow could be directed 
into that pipe. Reid advised that was the original plan; but it doesn’t remove enough water to 
correct the Charles Street flooding issues.  
 
C. Crawford inquired if this would address the flooding on Fir Court. Reid responded it would 
not address that problem, but addressing the Eleventh Street flow would help. Reid added that the 
flooding on Fir Court takes place in the cul-de-sac bulb, acting as a detention facility, and there is 
no apparent private property damage. The water entering the Rapp property is coming from 
properties located outside of the City to the west and uphill of the Fir Court subdivision. 
 



 6 

The majority consensus was to address the Charles Street issue. Daykin noted there are no funds 
available for the project. He asked the Council if they want to increase the $90,000 loan the city is 
taking out associated with the Highway 99W improvements or to consider the issues through the 
budget process for a 2016-2017 project. The majority consensus was to find a way to complete 
the Charles Street improvements in the short term. Daykin noted that the engineer’s time is also a 
problem with his current workload; which could delay this project to late summer. Reid noted that 
Kennedy/Jenks could do the design work since they have worked on the project. Staff will return 
a financing plan.  
  

Ordinance No. 544-2016, Sign Code Amendments 
The ordinance includes the amendments from the close of the hearing at the December 1st 
meeting. The motion was made and seconded to adopt Ordinance No. 544-2016, an ordinance 
amending the City’s sign regulations, related regulations and the Dundee Development Code 
(LURA 15-12). The motion passed unanimously. 
 
New Business 

WWTP Overflow Event 
Michael Humm, Kennedy/Jenks, presented a PowerPoint update on the Monday, December 7th 
overflow event. Equalization flow was routed to the north Facultative Sludge Lagoon (FSL), 
using the new bypass pipeline installed last summer. It was not utilized soon enough to 
accommodate the extremely rapid peak flow from the storm. The flows rose in the basins and 
found their way into two uncapped conduits placed to carry future power and signal wires; two 
additional conduits held and were not flooded. The conduits connect the wiring to the control 
panel. Waste water hit the control panel initiating a system shut down and shutting the permeate 
valves closing the flow out of the plant and allowing the treatment basin to overflow. There 
wasn’t any recourse. Mayor Russ asked for confirmation that flow from the plant to the FSL 
would have continued if the control panel had not shorted out. Van Meter replied the basin would 
still have over flowed; but they would have been able to get the plant back online. Russ 
questioned if a manual override could be installed. Van Meter cautioned with the system down 
the air scour for the membranes would not be working; which could plug up the membranes. 
Humm advised pumps were rented to temporarily divert flow out of the basin into the north FSL 
and out of the headworks into Lagoon 1. The focus was to get water out of the control panel. 
Losing the panel resulted in a five day shutdown period to get the plant back online. Van Meter 
clarified that the water flowed into the most important, expensive parts of the control panel. The 
north FSL and Lagoon 4 were full and Lagoon 1 was filling up; a temporary chlorine contact tank 
was setup from Lagoon 1 to Lagoon 4 to chlorinate the raw waste water before it ran into lagoon 
4. This is a permit violation, but DEQ instructed this was minimum treatment. They had an 
estimated four to five day storage capacity at Lagoon 1; but the elevated flows eventually 
exceeded the process storage capacity as the plant was brought back online. The pump and 
chlorine system was relocated to the headworks to divert excess flow into the Lagoon 4 for 
another week. The timeline was about three weeks before the plant was able to keep up with flow. 
Van Meter stated: 1) their specifications do not allow conduits to be placed into the sides of walls 
with hydraulic structures and 2) any conduit should have been sealed. The conduits on the bottom 
side have now been sealed. He expressed concern for the moisture in the system from the event. 
There is no way to remove the water, which will probably cause early corrosion in the panel and 
additional problems. He recommended planning to rewire and/or replace parts of the panel in the 
near future and including this in the insurance claim. The Mayor directed staff to request a full 
control panel replacement from the insurance coverage. C. A. Daykin requested backup 
documentation from the engineers. It was noted that the cities of Newberg, McMinnville, and 
Portland all had overflow issues.  
 



 7 

Engineer Humm went back through the charted peak flows in prior years for the Inflow and 
Infiltration (I & I) rehabilitation targeting 120 gpm/175,000 gallons per day. He reviewed the 
estimated WWTP flow over the five days of the rain event in December 2015, when the plant was 
offline (estimated from flow meters on Highway 99W and Parks Drive and Parks and Edwards 
Drives). Van Meter noted that the flows never backed off over the five day period. We more than 
doubled the maximum limit you should see at the plant over a twenty-four hour period; we 
exceeded that limit for days, staying in that range for about three weeks. In prior years the peak 
flow would decline substantially within the twenty-four hour period. The engineers decided that 
something had changed and went in search of the I & I problem with staff and a CCTV crew. 
Manholes were inspected with the finding that a lot of clean ground water (60 gpm estimate at 
one manhole) was entering the system because the seals between the concrete and the pipes have 
failed. Seventh Street and Linden Lane has a damaged lateral; which could have occurred when 
the street was widened and the storm drain system added. An injection grout, which reacts with 
water, will seal the manholes. The engineers have prepared a bid package for manhole repairs.  
 
The CCTV work is 75% complete. Some private lateral defects have been identified along with 
the manhole infiltration issues. Humm noted a Verizon cable drilled through a city sewer pipe at 
the upper end of Charles Street. The engineers explored the Parks Drive sewer line, after hearing 
the issues the neighbors were experiencing from the Bypass pile driving. They relocated two of 
the movable flow meters and found 200 to 500 gpm, inflow from the creek. The CCTV crew 
videoed the pipe without noting any issues; the flow meters were reset and either the measures 
were off or the level of the creek could have caused spiked readings. DEQ wants the I & I issues 
addressed. The engineers recommend the manhole repairs and are prepared to release the bid 
packets on a unit price basis upon Council’s direction. The flows at Alder Terrace are under 
continued monitoring and show a slight reduction after the summer repairs. There is potential for 
the Council to review a private lateral replacement program. The engineers are recommending 
installation of additional membranes in the unused basins. The north FSL will continue as an 
equalization basin; Lagoon 1 was recommended as an additional option.  
 
The Mayor inquired what DEQ is looking for on I & I reduction. Humm replied that the city has 
not been placed on a corrective action plan. Twenty manholes have been identified for repairs; 
representing about 25% of the manholes inspected to date. Van Meter expressed concern that the 
I & I problem will not be easily be easily solved. He believes DEQ will require additional 
membranes installed at the WWTP to handle peak flows noted in the current history. The 
recommendation is to add membranes to one of the unused basins at an estimated cost of 
$600,000. The membranes have an estimated lifespan of ten years. The original plan had been to 
add additional membranes at ten years out financed by system development charges (SDCs) from 
new development. This means that I & I will use up the expansion basins designated for future 
growth.  
 
C. A. Daykin questioned when quotes for the manhole project could be returned to the Council. 
Humm replied by the next Council meeting; work can be completed at the pace of two manholes 
a day at an estimated cost of $1,500 to $2,000 per manhole. The Mayor inquired if we will have 
comparative data after the manholes are repaired to show the change to the I & I. The engineers 
confirmed.  
 
C.A. Daykin referred to the invoice from The Automation Group (TAG), handed out to the 
Council, in the amount of $49,889 for the emergency work at the WWTP. The second handout is 
a quote from TAG, in the amount of $8,610, for work to be performed to the touch screen for the 
damaged panel which needs to be replaced. The invoice from GPEC (the electrician) is 
outstanding. C. Nelson questioned the pay rates. Daykin noted the cost will be paid by insurance 
and the claim has been filed. The motion was made and seconded to approve the payments to the 



 8 

Automation Group (TAG) in the amount of $58,499.76. Nelson asked for confirmation of the pay 
rates prior to authorizing payment. Humm noted that TAG used the same hourly rate on the water 
system improvements project. The Vote: Mayor Russ – aye, C. Crawford – aye, C. Nelson – nay, 
C. Pugsley – aye, C. Svicarovich – aye, and C. Weaver – aye. The motion passed six in favor. 
Nelson inquired if the city was eligible for FEMA funds from the storm event. Staff filed an 
incident report on the WWTP with the County Emergency Services. Staff will follow up to see if 
there would be any FEMA reimbursement available for repairs to the manholes.  
 

Riverside District Zone 
The Riverside District zone needs to be established, including design standards, prior to 
development of the area. Once the Riverside District zone is established, then the property owners 
may initiate a zone change along with a corresponding master plan for the subarea. After approval 
of the subarea master plan, then the owner may then initiate an application for subdivision and 
development. Stu Lindquist agreed to hire a consultant to help with the process to develop a 
Riverside District zone and the city agreed to not charge a permit review charge. A motion from 
the Council will initiate the amendment to the Dundee Development Code. The motion was 
made and seconded to initiate a proposed amendment to the Dundee Development Code for the 
new Riverside District zone. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
Planning Commission Appointment 

The motion was made and seconded to reappoint Michelle Kropf to the Planning Commission 
with a term expiring December 31, 2019. C. Nelson relayed conversation with Jody Kropf that 
Michelle had considered not reapplying due to concerns that the commission is stagnant and in 
need of new ideas. The motion passed unanimously. 
  

Tourism Committee Appointments 
The terms for Sheryl Kelsh, Joseph Buck, Myrna Miller, and Valerie Cutz expired December 31, 
2015. All wish to continue on the Committee. One application was received from Robin Sikkens. 
Mayor Russ recommends re-appointment of Kelsh, Buck, Miller and Cutz and appointment of 
Robin Sikkens. The motion was made and seconded to accept the Mayor’s re-appointments to 
the Tourism Committee. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Council Concerns and Committee Reports 
None. 
 
Mayor’s Report 
None. 
 
City Administrator’s Report 
The Strategic Valley Planning Group is surveying various agencies (the City of Newberg, 
Newberg School District, Chehalem Park and Recreation District, Yamhill County and the City 
of Dundee) to set a date for an April dinner meeting to receive input for an update to the Strategic 
Valley Plan. Daykin asked for the Council members to complete the survey. 
 
Nancy Boyer, Mid-Willamette Valley Council of Governments, will host a goal setting workshop 
starting at 6:00 P.M. on January 19th in lieu of the regular Council meeting. Dinner will be 
provided from La Sierra Mexican Restaurant.  
 
Public Comment: 
None. 
 



 9 

Executive Session: 
The City Council entered Executive Session at 11:13 P.M. in accordance with ORS 192.660 (2) 
(h) to consult with counsel concerning the legal rights and duties of a public body with regard to 
current litigation likely to be filed. Executive Session ended at 11:33 P.M. and the Council did 
not reconvene. 
 
 
 
       __________________________  
       David Russ 

Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Debra L. Manning, MMC  
Assistant City Recorder 



 1 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
TABLE OF CONTENTS FOR MINUTES 

January 19, 2016 
 

Call to Order ........................................................................................................................... 2 
Council and Staff Attendance ................................................................................................... 2 
Public Attendance ................................................................................................................... 2 
Agenda Changes: .................................................................................................................... 2 
Public Comment: ..................................................................................................................... 2 
New Business ......................................................................................................................... 2 

Manhole Repairs ............................................................................................................... 2 
Goal Setting ..................................................................................................................... 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

City of Dundee 
City Council Meeting Minutes 

January 19, 2016 
Call to Order  
Mayor Russ called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 
Council and Staff Attendance  
Present: Mayor David Russ, Councilors Jeannette Adlong, Ted Crawford, Storr Nelson, Kristen 
Svicarovich, and Tim Weaver. Excused: Councilor Doug Pugsley. Staff members: Rob Daykin, 
City Administrator, and Debra Manning, Assistant City Recorder. 
 
Public Attendance   
Nancy Boyer, Mid-Willamette Valley Council of Governments.  
    
Agenda Changes:  
None. 
 
Public Comment: 
None. 
 
New Business 

Manhole Repairs 
City Administrator Daykin handed out bid results from Kennedy/Jenks Consultants for manhole 
repairs. Twelve manholes were originally identified to be repaired; five more have been added to 
the list. The quote is for the original twelve; with three bids received from: C-More Pipe, Dave 
Brandt Technical Support, and Contech. The recommendation is to award the bid to C-More Pipe 
the low bidder at $11.442. Staff will be negotiating work for the five additional manholes which 
will be brought back to the Council. Daykin asked the Council to consider waiving the seven day 
notice of award and declaring an emergency as the Wastewater Treatment Plant is still 
experiencing high flows (above one million gallons per day). The CCTV inspections have 
identified about forty defects to date, additional work is scheduled at the end of the week. 
Engineer Humm will review the results and present a plan to address the issues. The motion was 
made and seconded to award the bid for manhole repairs to the low bidder C-More Pipe in the 
amount of $11,422 and to declare an emergency. The motion passed unanimously. 
 

Goal Setting 
Nancy Boyer, Mid-Willamette Valley Council of Governments, reviewed goal setting helps you 
spend your time more effectively, sets clear guidelines for the City Administrator, and supplies a 
useful budget, communication and evaluation tool. The Mission Statement communicates the 
purpose of the local government to the community. Goals are general statements to work toward. 
Objectives provide the specifics on how to obtain the goal; they should be measurable. Priority 
scale: 1) do now, 2) accomplish in 2-3 years, 3) look to fund in 3-5 years, and 4) routine ongoing 
maintenance. Action Plans are the responsibility of the City Administrator and staff to develop 
steps to achieve the objectives set by the Council. 
 
Updated Mission Statement:  
The City of Dundee provides public services which support and improve livability, safety and 
economic vitality of the community. 
 



 3 

Goal 1: Provide municipal facilities and infrastructures to support current operations and growth 
focusing on responsible funding, innovation and value to the community.  
 
Objectives: 

• Encourage reduction of traffic on Highway 99W by evaluating alternative routes and 
methods in conjunction with ODOT and Yamhill County, including participation in 
planning efforts (priority 4)   

• Secure funding to implement a free flowing traffic pattern at the south Dundee Bypass 
connection (priority not assigned) 

• Fund 25% of the projects identified in the Transportation System Plan (priority 3) 
• Effect repairs as needed to the Fire Hall (priority 2) 
• Involve the public in discussion of potential use of recycled water for irrigation and other 

non-potable purposes (priority 2) 
• Manage water rates that implement the Water Master Plan and support current operations 

(priority 4) 
• Establish System Development Charges rates that ensures future development contributes 

fairly to the City’s infrastructure (priority 1) 
• Pave all streets (no gravel roads) (priority 3) 
• New City Hall (priority 3) 
• Continue implementation of street maintenance plan (priority 4) 
• Complete planned streetscape (priority 2) 
• Explore and evaluate options including an overpass for pedestrian safety on and crossing 

Highway 99W (priority 3) 
• Continue to support Newberg/Dundee Bypass (priority 4) 
• Promote water conservation in the City (priority 4) 
• Address Inflow and Infiltration reduction (priority 1) 
• Evaluate the need to update the Wastewater Master Plan (priority 1) 
• Evaluate financial alternatives for Waste Water Treatment Plant (WWTP) improvements 

and current loans (priority 1) 
• Update the Storm Water Master Plan (priority 2) 
• Evaluate financial options for storm water improvements (priority 2) 

 
GOAL 2: Provide proper planning, zoning and codes to manage growth in the City while 
improving overall livability and enhancing historical qualities and maintaining Dundee’s unique 
character.  
 
Objectives:  

• Implement a yearly spring cleanup (priority 1) 
• Update development codes focusing on park land dedication and on-site storm water 

management for new developments (priority 1) 
• Integrate unique identity elements within Improvement Design Standards (priority 2) 
• Complete Riverside Zone changes and Design Standards (priority 1) 
• Update City Charter to facilitate Urban Renewal District (priority 1) 
• Develop public parking plan (priority 2) 
• Council to meet jointly with Planning Commission as needed to outline and coordinate 

activities, objectives and priorities (priority 4) 
• Encourage and provide Planning Commissioners with training (priority 4) 
• Improve the visual appearance of downtown through education, code enforcement and 

public property beautification and maintenance (priority 4) 
• Develop a plan for Dundee visitor’s information center with public restrooms (priority 3) 



 4 

 
GOAL 3: Develop and manage an integrated system of parks, paths and open spaces to enhance 
livability, utilize natural assets and provide recreational opportunities. 
 
Objectives:  

• Initiate civic core visioning process to secure permanence of Dundee Billick Park 
(priority 1) 

• Ensure the development of centrally located neighborhood and community parks as 
identified in the Riverside Master Plan (priority 2) 

• Convert existing WWTP lands for park, paths and open space use (priority 3) 
• Promote wildlife and wetland habitat in the former WWTP lagoons (priority 4) 
• Interconnect Harvey Creek, Harvey Creek Springs and Viewmont properties via trails 

(priority 3) 
• Improve non-motorized connectivity between the hills, the river and neighboring 

communities through a coordinated trail system (priority 3) 
• Pursue potential purchase of twenty acres adjacent to the Harvey Creek Trail property for 

expansion of the trail system (priority 3) 
• Continue to implement the Parks and Open Space Plan (priority 4) 
• Maintain effective communication with Chehalem Parks and Recreation District (CPRD) 

by quarterly updates from CPRD and attendance of a City representative at key CPRD 
board meetings (priority 4) 

 
Goal 4: Encourage a positive and viable economic environment and instill pride of ownership 
and a sense of community shared by businesses and residents. 
 
Objectives: 

• Construct Welcome to Dundee sign for the south end of the City (priority 2) 
• Encourage development/redevelopment of downtown businesses (priority 4) 
• Support façade improvement program (priority 1) 
• Underground utilities on Highway 99W (priority 3) 
• Support community events and projects and utilize the Chamber of Commerce to foster a 

relationship with businesses to maintain and improve properties (priority 4) 
• Feature yard maintenance/innovations/backyard activities in the City newsletter (priority 

4) 
• Develop and implement a request for customer feedback for City services related to 

development/redevelopment with the objective to improve City services (priority 1) 
 
Goal 5: Provide efficient, effective and open government to best serve the community, increase 
civic involvement and support public safety. 
 
Objectives: 

• Continue communication with Yamhill County and the City of Newberg by encouraging 
attendance of City elected officials and staff at relevant meetings and participation on 
studies, taskforces and committees (priority 4) 

• Publicly recognize community volunteers (priority 4) 
• Upgrade and enhance the City’s website (priority 1) 
• Explore other effective mediums for communication with the community (priority 1) 
• Develop reliable documentation for public works activities including additional 

administrative staff and resources (priority 1) 
• Install radar reader board on First Street, Ninth Street and by the Elementary School 

(priority 1) 



 5 

• Assist Fire Chief in the recruitment and retention of volunteer fire personnel (priority 1) 
• Support efforts of Newberg/Dundee Police community outreach including National Night 

Out and Citizen Academy (priority 4) 
• Update the Employee Handbook (priority 2) 
• Provide a positive work environment for City staff and elected/appointed officials which 

includes continuing education and professional development and opportunities (priority 
4) 

• Continue staff appreciation day at end of year (priority 4) 
• Continue quarterly newsletter (priority 4) 
• Ensure an ethic of customer service for City government (priority 4) 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:35 P.M.  
 
 
 
 
       __________________________  
       David Russ 

Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Debra L. Manning, MMC  
Assistant City Recorder 



CITY OF DUNDEE 
Statement of Activities 

From 7/1/2015 Through 12/31/2015 

State 
Street Revenue Storm Storm 

General Street CIP Reserve Sharing Equipment Tourism Fire Station Bonded Water WaterCIP Sewer SewerCIP Water WaterCIP 

Fund Street Fund Fund Fund Fund Reserve Fund Parks Fund Fund Constr Fund Debt Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total 

Revenue 
Taxes 557,793 21,052 31,041 120,783 730,669 
Franchise Fees 29,268 19,048 48,316 
Licenses & Pennits 8,104 8,104 
Intergovernmental Revenue 94,809 95,600 12,230 202,639 
Charges for Services 123,155 394,134 5,112 614,565 45,521 1,182,487 
Fines & Forfeitures 32,415 32,415 
Miscellaneous Revenue 5,490 178 318 II 5 27 1,754 17 53 62 200 826 2,081 167 1,452 66 106 12,911 

Total Revenue 851,033 116,830 19,366 115 12,257 1,754 17 31,094 62 120,983 394,960 7,193 614,732 1,452 45,587 106 2,217,540 

Expenditures 
Personnel 250,137 29,479 78,545 74,817 17,728 450,708 
Materials & Services 340,886 37,501 3,623 20 2,834 64,848 115,859 128,367 13,103 707,041 
Capital Outlay 846 34,816 49,105 31,445 1,012 5,841 317,468 2,174 2,228 452 13,187 458,572 
Debt Service 29,314 61,545 364,691 455,549 

Total Expenditures 591,869 66,980 34.816 3,623 78,418 31,465 2,834 65,860 200,245 379,012 205,358 366,919 31,284 13,187 2,071,871 

Excess (defiency) of Revenue 259,164 49,849 (15,450) 115 8,635 (76,665) (31,448) 28,260 (65,798) 120,983 194,715 (371,820) 409,373 (365,467) 14,303 (13,081) 145,670 
over Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) (47,875) (10,000) 10,000 97,000 (18,406) (318,219) 287,500 

Net Changes to Fund Balance 211,289 49,849 (15,450) 115 (1,365) (76,665) (21,448) 28.260 31,202 120,983 176,310 (371,820) 91.154 (77,967) 14,303 (13,081) 145,670 

Beginning Fund Balance 
405,400 49,504 161,106 42,458 12,378 737,747 15,843 22,245 38,406 30,512 111,766 1,003,744 17,658 611,126 5.552 63,058 3,328,503 

Ending Fund Balance 616,689 99,354 145,656 42,573 11,013 661,082 (5,605) 50,505 69,608 151,495 288,076 631,924 108,812 533,160 19,855 49,977 3,474,173 



City of Dundee 
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures 

OJ-General Fund 
From 12/ 1/2015 Through 12/31/2015 

(In Whole Numbers) 
**UNAUDITED** 

Current Period Current Year Percent Total Total Budget 
Actual Actual Total Budget Budget Remaining Variance 

REVENUES 

Taxes 77,438 557,793 592,900 -6% (35,107) 

Franchise Fees 29,268 143,600 -80% (114,332) 

Licenses & Pem1its 588 8,104 58,600 -86% (50,496) 

Intergovernmental Revenue 63,905 94,809 157,600 -40% (62,791) 

Charges for Services 16,686 123,155 210,500 -41% (87,345) 

Fines & Forfeitures 4,882 32,415 52,000 -38% (19,585) 

Miscellaneous Revenues 441 5,490 5,300 4% 190 

Total REVENUES 163,941 851,033 1,220,500 -30% (369,467) 

EXPENDITURES 

General Govt 22,228 171,646 330,700 48% 159,054 

Court 1,639 9,126 20,700 56% 11,574 

Community Development 2,878 36,161 122,200 70% 86,039 

Police Services 0 198,437 473,300 58% 274,863 

Fire Services 20,590 176,500 372,700 53% 196,200 

Total EXPENDITURES 47,334 591,869 1,319,600 55% 727,731 

Excess (deficiency) of Revenue Over 116,607 259,164 (99, 100) -362% 358,264 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers In 6,991 49,125 88,300 -44% (39,175) 

Transfers Out (97,000) (97,000) (97,000) 0% 0 

Other Uses 0 0 0 0% 0 
Total OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (90,009) (47,875) (8, 700) 450% (39, 175) 
(USES) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 26,598 211,289 (107,800) -296% 319,089 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 590,090 405,400 410,200 -1% (4,800) 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 616,689 616,689 302,400 104% 314,289 



EXPENDITURES 
Personnel Services 

Salaries & Wages 
Personnel Benefits 

Total Personnel Services 
Materials & Services 

Supplies 
Professional Services 
Contractual Services 
Travel & Training 
Insurance 
Regulatory Requirements 
Utilities 
Repairs & Maintenance 
Other Materials & Services 

Total Materials & Services 
Capital Outlay 

Total EXPENDITURES 

Current Period 
Actual 

12,811 
6,235 

19,046 

116 
912 
110 
397 

0 
0 

233 
512 
901 

3,182 

0 

~'.22.~8. 

CITY OF DUNDEE 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

01 -Admin I Finance 
00 I - General Fund 

From 12/1/2015 Through 12/31/2015 
(In Whole Numbers) 

Current Year 
Actual 

76,646 
36,714 

113,360 

1,678 
29,332 

661 
5,842 
6,822 

775 
3,017 
3,749 
5~9_72_ 

57,856 

430 
__ EL.()46 

Total Budget 

153,800 
76,200 

230,000 

4,000 
48,300 

0 
10,000 
7,300 
1,300 
6,400 
9,200 

1.3,0JJO 
99,500 

.. 1.,.~00 
330,700 

Percent Total 
Budget 

Remaining 

50% 
52% 
51 % 

58% 
39% 
0% 

42% 
7% 

40% 
53% 
59% 
54% 
42% 

64% 
48% 

Total Budget 
Variance 

77,154 
39,486 

116,640 

2,322 
18,968 

(661) 
4,158 

478 
525 

3,383 
5,451 
7,021 

41,644 

770 
159,054 



EXPENDITURES 
Personnel Services 

Salaries & Wages 
Personnel Benefits 

Total Personnel Services 
Materials & Services 

Supplies 
Professional Services 
Contractual Services 
Travel & Training 
Other Materials & Services 

Total Materials & Services 
Total EXPENDITURES 

Current Period 
Actual 

688 
479 

1,166 

90 
0 

272 
0 

_I IO 
472 

l,6_1C) 

CITY OF DUNDEE 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

02 - Court 
00 I - General Fund 

From 12/1/2015 Through 12/31/2015 
(In Whole Numbers) 

Current Year 
Actual 

4,122 
2,862_ 
6,984 

90 
0 

1,632 
0 

420 
__ 2,)42 

- _<), 126 

Total Budget 

8,500 
6,100 

14,600 

300 
400 

3,300 
900 

I,2QO 
6,100 

- -- 20,700 

Percent Total 
Budget 

Remaining 

52% 
53 % 
52% 

70% 
100% 
51 % 

100% 
65 % 
65 % 
56% 

Total Budget 
Variance 

4,378 
3,238 
7,616 

210 
400 

1,668 
900 
780 

__ 3,9_58 
U,5_74 



EXPENDITURES 
Personnel Services 

Salaries & Wages 
Personnel Benefits 

Total Personnel Services 
Materials & Services 

Supplies 
Professional Services 
Contractual Services 
Travel & Training 
Other Materials & Services 

Total Materials & Services 
Total EXPENDITURES 

Current Period 
Actual 

946 
659 

1,605 

400 
785 

81 
0 
7 - -------------

I,ll] 
2,878 

CITY OF DUNDEE 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

03 - Community Development 
00 I - General Fund 

From 12/1/2015 Through 12/31/2015 
(In Whole Numbers) 

Current Year 
Actual 

5,238 
3,88_6 
9,124 

593 
20,899 

5,423 
0 

122 
- ---- --------- -

27,037 

- ]_(),_l_(jJ. 

Total Budget 

10,700 
8,200 

18,900 

1,100 
42,500 
36,000 

1,100 
22,60() 

_101,300 
122,200 

Percent Total 
Budget 

Remaining 

51 % 
53 % 
52% 

46% 
51 % 
85% 

100% 
99% 
74% 
70% 

Total Budget 
Variance 

5,462 
4,314 
9,776 

507 
21,601 
30,577 

1,100 
~2,'178 

76,263 
86,039_ 



EXPENDITURES 
Materials & Services 

Contractual Services 
Total Materials & Services 

Total EXPENDITURES 

Current Period 
Actual 

0 
0 
0 

CITY OF DUNDEE 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

04 - Police Dept 
00 I - General Fund 

From 12/I/2015 Through 12/3 l/20! 5 
(In Whole Numbers) 

Current Year 
Actual 

198,437 
I_C)8_,_437 
I 98,437_ 

Total Budget 

473,300 
473,300 
473,300 

Percent Total 
Budget 

Remaining 

58 % 
58% 
58 % 

Total Budget 
Variance 

274,863 
274,863 
274,863 



EXPENDITURES 
Personnel Services 

Salaries & Wages 
Personnel Benefits 

Total Personnel Services 
Materials & Services 

Supplies 
Professional Services 
Contractual Services 
Travel & Training 
Insurance 
Regulatory Requirements 
Utilities 
Repairs & Maintenance 
Other Materials & Services 

Total Materials & Services 
Capital Outlay 

Total EXPENDITURES 

Current Period 
Actual 

12,378 
4,610 

16,988 

895 
0 
0 
0 
0 

894 
868 
944 

0 
3,601 

0 
___ 1(),589 

CITY OF DUNDEE 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

05 - Fire Dept 
001 - General Fund 

From 12/1/2015 Through 12/31/2015 
(In Whole Numbers) 

Current Year 
Actual 

91,494 
-~9,]76 

120,670 

8,096 
337 

15,020 
598 

16,161 
1,209 
5,463 
8,483 

47 
55,415 

416 
176,iOO_ 

Total Budget 

166,600 
79,400 

246,000 

18,500 
2,000 

28,600 
2,200 

15,600 
9,200 

16,800 
13,600 

700 
107,200 

19,500 
372LIOO 

Percent Total 
Budget 

Remaining 

45% 
63% 
51 % 

56% 
83 % 
47% 
73 % 
(4)% 
87% 
67% 
38% 
93% 
48% 

98% 
53 % 

Total Budget 
Variance 

75,106 
50,224 

125,330 

10,404 
1,663 

13,580 
1,602 
(561) 

7,991 
11,337 
5,117 

653 
51,785 

_ _19,084 
196,200 



CITY OF DUNDEE 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

110 - Street Fund 
From 12/1/2015 Through 12/31/2015 

(In Whole Numbers) 

Percent Total 
Current Period Current Year Budget Total Budget 

Actual Actual Total Budget Remaining Variance 

REVENUES 
Taxes 

3,153 21,052 38,000 (45)% (16,948) 
Intergovernmental Revenue 

14,446 95,600 183,300 (48)% (87,700) 
Miscellaneous Revenues 

45 178 100 78% 78 
Total REVENUES 17,64) J_l§,830 221,400 _1_47)% (104,570} 

EXPENDITURES 
Personnel Services 

4,829 29,479 62,400 53 % 32,921 
Materials & Services 

Supplies 250 1,975 4,300 54% 2,325 
Professional Services 0 2,802 7,200 61 % 4,398 
Travel & Training 0 II 500 98% 489 
Insurance 0 1,448 1,600 9% 152 
Regulatory Requirements 0 86 100 15% 15 
Utilities 71 9,786 24,000 59% 14,214 
Repairs & Maintenance 713 6,592 36,100 82% 29,508 
lnterfund Services 2,467 14,800 29,600 51 % 14,800 
Other Materials & Services 0 0 200 100% 200 

Total Materials & Services )_,l()I_ 37,5()! IQ},600 64% 6_6,099 
Total EXPENDITURES 8,330 --- _ _§_6,980 166,000 - 60% (/9,020 

Excess (deficiency) of Revenue over 9,313 49,849 55,400 (10)% (5,551) 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfer Out 

0 0 (83,200) (100)% 83,200 
Other Uses 

0 0 ___ (5,000) (IOO)_o/<> 5,000 
Total OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) _ 0 0 (88,20_0) ___ (100)% 88,200 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 9,313 __ 49,849 - (3_~,800) (252lli 82,6_49 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 
90,040 49,504 41,500 I9% 8,004 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 9J,354 99,354 8,700 1_04) % 90,654 



REVENUES 
Franchise Fees 

Intergovernmental Revenue 

Miscellaneous Revenues 

Total REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital Outlay 

Debt Service 

Total EXPENDITURES 

Excess (deficiency) of Revenue over 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Debt Proceeds 

Transfers In 

Other 
Interfund Loan 

Total Other 
Total OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 

CITY OF DUNDEE 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

111 - Street CIP Fund 

Current Period 
Actual 

0 

0 

66 
66 

1,192 

0 
--------------

_Ll22 

(1,126) 

0 

0 

0 
----- -------

0 
0 

-- - _ _lj,g()) 

146,782 

14l,~§_ 

From 12/1/2015 Through 12/31/2015 
(In Whole Numbers) 

Current Year 
Actual 

19,048 

0 

318 
19,366 

34,816 

0 
- . :34,816 

(15,450) 

0 

0 

0 
0 ---------

0 - ---------------

(15,450) 

161,106 

145,656 

Total Budget 

44,700 

1,265,500 

200,800 
1,511,000 

1,869,700 

10,000 
1,879,700 

(368,700) 

76,000 

70,000 

200,000 
200,000 
346,000 

--

. (22_,7_QQ2 

177,700 

15~,000 

Percent Total 
Budget 

Remaining 

(57)% 

(100)% 

(100)% 
-- (99)% 

98% 

100% 
98% 

(96)% 

(100)% 

(100)% 

- (1_00)% 
(100)% 
(100)% 

_ _fl~o/c> 

(9)% 

____ (61')/o 

Total Budget 
Variance 

(25,652) 

(1,265,500) 

(200,4822 
__ U,491,634) 

1,834,884 

___ 19,_000 
____ LSH,88'1: 

353,250 

(76,000) 

(70,000) 

____ Q0_0,000) 
- _(2_0_0_,_00Q2 

__ (34_1),000) 

7,250_ 

(16,594) 

(9,344) 



REVENUES 
Miscellaneous Revenues 

Total REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital Outlay 

Total EXPENDITURES 

Excess (deficiency) of Revenue over 
Expenditures 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 

CITY OF DUNDEE 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

112 - Street Reserve Fund 

Current Period 
Actual 

21 
21 

0 
0 

21 

21 

42,552 

_4l,5]3 

From 12/1/2015 Through 12/31/2015 
(In Whole Numbers) 

Current Year 
Actual 

115 
115 

0 
0 

115 
---------------

115 
-- ---------------

42,458 

-~,5_73. 

Total Budget 

200 
200 

42,60.Q 
... _42,600 

(42,400) 

-- --------

.H~AOO] 

42,400 

0 

Percent Total 
Budget 

Remaining 

f42)% 
-- _('12)% 

100% ---- ---------

100% 

(100)% 

(100)% 

0% 

0% --- ------------ - -

Total Budget 
Variance 

(85) 
.. (85} 

_____ 4~,600 
42,6.QO 

42,515 

42,515 

58 

4~,5n 



REVENUES 
Intergovernmental Revenue 

Miscellaneous Revenues 

Total REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES 
Materials & Services 

Professional Services 
Contractual Services 
Other Materials & Services 

Total Materials & Services 
Total EXPENDITURES 

Excess (deficiency) of Revenue over 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfer Out 

Total OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 

CITY OF DUNDEE 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

122 - State Revenue Sharing Fund 
From 12/1/2015 Through 12/31/2015 

(In Whole Numbers) 

Current Period 
Actual 

0 

5 
5 

0 
500 

0 
500 
500 

(495) 

__ JIO,OOO) 
(10,0QQJ 

(_10,495) 

21,507 

_11_,Ql~ 

Current Year 
Actual 

12,230 

27 
12,257 

794 
2,828 

0 
3,623 
),62J 

8,635 

(IQ,_QQOJ 
- _ _QQ,000) 

{l,365) 

12,378 

11,01_3 

Total Budget 

26,000 

100 
26,100 

19,200 
7,600 
1,500 

28,300 
2~,~0Q 

(2,200) 

(J0,_000) 
(10,000) 

(12,20QJ 

12,200 

0 

Percent Total 
Budget 

Remaining 

(53)% 

(73)% 
.. - (53)% 

96% 
63% 

100% 
87% 
87% 

(492)% 

0% --

0% 

C~2'Yo 

1% 

0% 

Total Budget 
Variance 

(13,770) 

(73) 
(13,843) 

18,406 
4,772 
l,500 

2<(,677 
24,677 

10,835 

0 
0 

____ 10,835 

178 

!I ,o 13 



CITY OF DUNDEE 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

127 - Equipment Reserve Fund 
From 12/1/2015 Through 12/31/2015 

(In Whole Numbers) 

Percent Total 
Current Period Current Year Budget Total Budget 

Actual Actual Total Budget Remaining Variance 

REVENUES 
Miscellaneous Revenues 

318 1,754 3,500 (~om . ··- (1,7462 
Total REVENUES 318 1,754 3,500 (50)% (!_, 746} 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital Outlay 

0 49,105 755,600 94% 706,495 
Debt Service 

0 29,314 58,700 50% 29,38~ 

Total EXPENDITURES 0 __ l8_Al8 - 814,300 90% 735,882 

Excess (deficiency) of Revenue over 318 (76,665) (810,800) (91)% 734,135 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers In 

0 0 - )33)00 __ J!()Q}% ___ (133, 100) 
Total OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 0 0 133,100 (100)% (13})_0Q) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 
-· 

318 (76,665) (677,70Q) (891~ ___ 601,035 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 
660,764 737,747 677,700 9% 60,047 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 661,081_ - 661,082 0 -------
0% 661,082_ 



CITY OF DUNDEE 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

13 I - Parks Fund 
From 12/1/2015 Through 12/31/2015 

(In Whole Numbers) 

Percent Total 
Current Period Current Year Budget Total Budget 

Actual Actual Total Budget Remaining Variance 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental Revenue 

0 0 31,500 (100)% (31,500) 
Miscellaneous Revenues 

0 17 4,100 (100)% - - _(4,083) 
Total REVENUES 0 17 35,600 (100)% (35,583) 

EXPENDITURES 
Materials & Services 

Professional Services 0 0 2,500 100% 2,500 
Repairs & Maintenance 0 20 1,000 98% 980 

Total Materials & Services 0 20 3,500 99% 3,480 
Capital Outlay 

41 31,445 54,500 42% 23,055 
Total EXPENDITURES 41 31,465 58,000 46% 2§,5}5_ 

Excess (deficiency) of Revenue over (41) (31,448) (22,400) 40% (9,048) 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers In 

10,000 1(),0_00 10,0()_0 0% 0 
Total OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) IM_O() _!(),000 10,000 0% Q_ 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE .2"2~2 (21,448) - (12,400) 73% (9,()48) 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 
(15,564) 15,843 13,200 20% 2,643 

ENDING FUND BALANCE (5,605) ---~605) 800 ___ 110_1)% (6,405J 



CITY OF DUNDEE 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

151 -Tourism Fund 
From 12/1/2015 Through 12/31/2015 

(In Whole Numbers) 

Percent Total 
Current Period Current Year Budget Total Budget 

Actual Actual Total Budget Remaining Variance 

REVENUES 
Taxes 

3,011 31,041 32,900 (6)% (1,859) 
Intergovernmental Revenue 

0 0 10,000 (100)% (I 0,000) 
Miscellaneous Revenues 

12 53 100 . _(17}'Yo (42) 
Total REVENUES 3,021 31,Q94 43,000 .. ____ (28)% .. _ (11,907) 

EXPENDITURES 
Materials & Services 

Contractual Services 443 .. - ·---~'~34 _4Q,500 93 % 37,667_ 
Total Materials & Services 443 2,834 40,500 93% 37'662 
Total EXPENDITURES 443 .. _1,~34. 40,500 93% 37,667 

Excess (deficiency) of Revenue over 2,579 28,260 2,500 1,030% 25, 760 
Expenditures 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE _'2.,~79 ···-~160 _1,:;00 l ,030'YQ 1?,}60 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 
47,926 22,245 16,600 34% 5,645 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 50,:;_0i. . 5Q,505 19,LOQ 164% 31,405 



REVENUES 
Miscellaneous Revenues 

Total REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES 
Materials & Services 

Professional Services 
Other Materials & Services 

Total Materials & Services 
Capital Outlay 

Total EXPENDITURES 

Excess (deficiency) of Revenue over 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers In 

Total OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 

CITY OF DUNDEE 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

20 I - Fire Station Construction 
From 12/1/2015 Through 12/31/2015 

(In Whole Numbers) 

Current Period 
Actual 

34 
34 

16,002 
0 

16,002 

0 
_16,002 

(15,968) 

9LOOO 
9_7,000 

- 8_1()J2 

(11,424) 

69,601!_ 

Current Year 
Actual 

62 
62 

64,216 
632 

64,848 

!,OE_ 
65&60_ 

(65,798) 

97,00() 
97,000 

31,_2_<g 

38,406 

____§2,_608 

Total Budget 

0 
0 

97,000 
0 

97,000 

__L7,]0() 
_114,300 

(114,300) 

__ 9_7,000 
9},00() 

_(l},300) 

17,300 

0 

Percent Total 
Budget 

Remaining 

0% 
0% 

34% 
0% 

33% 

94% 
42% 

(42)% 

0% 
0% 

- -- -- (280)% 

122% 

0% 

Total Budget 
Variance 

62 
62 

32,784 
(632) 

32,152 

- l~,~8~ 
48,14() 

48,502 

0 
0 

41!,_50~ 

21,106 

69,60~_ 



REVENUES 
Taxes 

Miscellaneous Revenues 

Total REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES 
Debt Service 

Total EXPENDITURES 

Excess (deficiency) of Revenue over 
Expenditures 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 

CITY OF DUNDEE 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

310 - Bonded Debt 

Current Period 
Actual 

17,404 

75 
17,478 

0 
0 ---------

17,478 

_17,478 

134,017 

__ _Lll,_4J~ 

From 12/1/2015 Through 12/31/2015 
(In Whole Numbers) 

Current Year 
Actual 

120,783 

200 
120,983 

0 
0 

120,983 

120,983_ 

30,512 

151,495 

Total Budget 

130,500 

300 
130,800 

150,200 
_D_0,_200 

(19,400) 

--- - (19,4_00) 

30,400 

--- - _11,000 

Percent Total 
Budget 

Remaining 

(7)% 

- (33)% 
(8)% 

100% 
- ------- --

100% 

(724)% 

----------

(724)% 

0% 

1,277% 

Total Budget 
Variance 

(9,717) 

(IOQ) 
(9,817) 

150,200_ 
-- _l_~_,_200 

140,383 

140,383 

112 

- _I 4_0,12_5 _ 



CITY OF DUNDEE 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

431 - Water Fund 
From 12/1/2015 Through 12/31/2015 

(In Whole Numbers) 

Percent Total 
Current Period Current Year Budget Total Budget 

Actual Actual Total Budget Remaining Variance 

REVENUES 
Charges for Services 

38,854 394,134 595,400 (34)% (201,266) 
Miscellaneous Revenues 

107 826 800 3% 26 
Total REVENUES 38,96_1 394,96Q 596,200 (34)')1., (20j,240) 

EXPENDITURES 
Personnel Services 

13,853 78,545 163,900 52% 85,355 
Materials & Services 

Supplies 848 6,860 12,600 46% 5,740 
Professional Services 676 6,195 10,000 38% 3,805 
Contractual Services 0 6,841 10,000 32% 3,159 
Travel & Training 0 583 1,800 68% 1,217 
Insurance 0 4,289 4,600 7% 311 
Regulatory Requirements 440 8,351 4,200 (99)% (4,151) 
Utilities 289 19,708 42,800 54% 23,092 
Repairs & Maintenance 2,604 21,251 39,800 47% 18,549 
Interfund Services 6,467 38,800 77,600 51 % 38,800 
Other Materials & Services 526 _2,980_ _ _J,900 49% -- _2,920 

Total Materials & Services 11,850 115,859 209,300 45% 93,441 
Capital Outlay 

0 5,8£lL 1_9,'-fQO 70% 1),559 
Total EXPENDITURES 25,702_ - - 200,245 - _3_92"600 50% 

--
192,355 

Excess (deficiency) of Revenue over 13,259 194,715 203,600 (4)% (8,885) 
Expenditures 

------ --- ---------

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfer Out 

(1,852) (18,406) (247,800) (93)% 229,394 
Other Uses 

0 0 (20,QOO) (IOO)o/ci 2.MOO 
Total OTHER FINANCING SOUFCES (USES) (1,852) (18,406) {267,800} _(2))'}/o - __ 249,394 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE _l_l,407 176,310 - (64,200) i3l5)o/ci 240,5IQ 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 
276,669 111,766 79,100 41% 32,666 

ENDING FUND BALANCE ~8_8,076 28_§,Q26 14,900 1,833% 27),176 



REVENUES 
Charges for Services 

Miscellaneous Revenues 

Total REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital Outlay 

Debt Service 

Total EXPENDITURES 

Excess (deficiency) of Revenue over 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers In 

Other 
lnterfund Loan 

Total Other 
Total OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 

CITY OF DUNDEE 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

432 - Water CIP Fund 

Current Period 
Actual 

0 

302 
302 

149 

0 
149 

------------

153 

-----------

0 

0 
-----

0 
---- ------------

0 
- - --- --- --------

153 
----------

631,771 

--- __ 6_31,924 

From 12/1/2015 Through 12/31/2015 
(In Whole Numbers) 

Current Year 
Actual 

5,112 

2,081 
7,193 

3 I 7,468 

61,545 
- - ]7_9,012 

(371,820) 

0 

0 
0 

---------

0 -----------

Q.71,8_20) 

1,003,744 

631,9_24 

Total Budget 

25,200 

4,000 
_29,20_0 

923,000 

62,500 
985~500 

(956,300) 

176,000 

____ _(120_,QO_Q) 
_____ (~90,QQO} 
_ ___ ill1,QOQ_) 

( l ,Q70,3QQ) 

1,106,000 

35,700 

Percent Total 
Budget 

Remaining 

(80)% 

(48)% 
__ (75)% 

66% 

2% 
62% 

- --- - ------

(61)% 

(100)% 

__ ___QQ()lli> 
-- -- - -___ _J_l_Q())% 
______ {lOO)').{, 

--- ___ 1§5.lli> 

(9)% 

1,6_70'){, 

Total Budget 
Variance 

(20,088) 

- (1,919} 
(22,007) 

605,532 

955 
----- §_Q_6,488 

584,480 

(176,000) 

----~(),()OQ 
290,00Q_ 

__ Jl~LQQO _ 

--- --- _69~48_0 

(102,256) 

596,224 



CITY OF DUNDEE 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

441 - Sewer Fund 
From 12/1/2015 Through 12/31/2015 

(In Whole Numbers) 

Percent Total 
Current Period Current Year Budget Total Budget 

Actual Actual Total Budget Remaining Variance 

REVENUES 
Charges for Services 

102,786 614,565 1,187,000 (48)% (572,435) 
Miscellaneous Revenues 

40 
--------- 167 100 67% _67 

Total REVENUES l_0~,826 -- 614,732 1,187,100 J_48)o/o (572,368) 

EXPENDITURES 
Personnel Services 

13,969 74,817 156,400 52% 81,583 
Materials & Services 

Supplies 1,109 10,753 24,300 56% 13,547 
Professional Services 180 9,100 8,500 (7)% (600) 
Contractual Services 0 180 700 74% 520 
Travel & Training 0 1,061 1,800 41 % 739 
Insurance 0 I5,720 16,000 2% 280 
Regulatory Requirements 191 4,283 7,200 41% 2,917 
Utilities 459 28,604 82,100 65 % 53,496 
Repairs & Maintenance 5,448 18,931 20,800 9% 1,869 
Interfund Services 6,175 37,050 74,100 50% 37,050 
Other Materials & Services 526 __ _b§_86 5,700 53 % ),014 

Total Materials & Services 14,089 128,367 241,200 47% 112,833 
Capital Outlay 

0 - 2,174 2,400 --------- -- -- 9% 227 
Total EXPENDITURES 28,057 205,:32!. 400,0_00 49% _J24,642 

Excess (deficiency) of Revenue over 74,769 409,373 787,100 (48)% (377,727) 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfer Out 

(62,639) (318,219) (762,400) (58)% 444,181 
Other Uses 

0 0 _(2Q,OOO) __ UQO)% 20,00Q 
Total OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) -- __ (§2,639) (318,2_192 (782,400) ____l59J% 464,18_1 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 12,]3Q _9l,154 ---
4,700 - 1,839 % 8_6,454 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 
96,683 17,658 10,700 65% 6,958 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 108,8n _l_Q8,812 15,400 607% 93,412 



REVENUES 
Charges for Services 

Miscellaneous Revenues 

Total REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital Outlay 

Debt Service 

Total EXPENDITURES 

Excess (deficiency) of Revenue over 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (LJSES) 
Debt Proceeds 

Transfers In 

Total OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

NET CHANGE JN FUND BALANCE 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 

CITY OF DUNDEE 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

442 - Sewer CIP Fund 

Current Period 
Actual 

0 

253 
253 

0 

0 
0 

253 

0 

_g~oo 

~7,500 

_g753 

475,406 

533,I_Q()_ 

From 12/1/2015 Through 12/31/2015 
(In Whole Numbers) 

Current Year 
Actual 

0 

1,452 
l,452 

2,228 

_3_6j,62_1 
36§,C)_l9 

(365,467) 

0 

- _287,500 
28z,soo 

(77,9_6]J 

611,126 

_5)3_,160 

Total Budget 

26,500 

3,000 
29,500 

600,000 

_6_8j,900 
1,]84,9_00 

( 1,255,400) 

600,000 

690,000 
1,29~L()0_0 

_3'1,§QO 

586,900 

621,500 

Percent Total 
Budget 

Remaining 

(100)% 

C5lm 
(95)% 

100% 

47% 
71 % 

(71)% 

-- ---------- --

(100)% 

(5_8)~ 

- __ Q_8)% 

_J31_5)% 

4% 

(l4)'Y<> 

Total Budget 
Variance 

(26,500) 

(I ,54J!} 
(28,048) 

597,773 

____ _3_20,209 
917,982 

889,933 

(600,000) 

(10],~()0) 

-_{1()0_2,500) 

___ (112,567) 

24,226 

- __ (8_8,340) 



REVENUES 
Charges for Services 

Miscellaneous Revenues 

Total REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES 
Personnel Services 

Materials & Services 
Supplies 
Professional Services 
Travel & Training 
Insurance 
Regulatory Requirements 
Utilities 
Repairs & Maintenance 
lnterfund Services 
Other Materials & Services 

Total Materials & Services 
Capital Outlay 

Total EXPENDITURES 

Excess (deficiency) of Revenue over 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfer Out 

Other Uses 

Total OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 

CITY OF DUNDEE 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

451 - Storm Water Fund 

Current Period 
Actual 

7,620 

4 
7,624 

2,942 

125 
0 
0 
0 
0 

35 
54 

1,408 
14 

1,637 

0 

------ 4,578 

3,046 

0 

0 
0 

3,046 

16,809 

19,855_ 

From 12/112015 Through 12/3l/2015 
(In Whole Numbers) 

Current Year 
Actual 

45,521 

66 
45,587 

17,728 

946 
2,082 

6 
126 
36 

248 
1,175 
8,450 

35 
13,103 

452 
_31,2~4 

14,303 

0 

0 
---·-

0 

14A03 

5,552 

19,~~5 

Total Budget 

93,800 

100 
93,900 

35,600 

2,200 
5,900 

400 
200 
JOO 
600 

2,400 
16,900 

400 
29,100 

500 
65,200 

28,700 

(27,000) 

___ (5,_0QO) 
(32,000} 

(3,3_00) 

3,900 

600 

Percent Total 
Budget 

Remaining 

(51)% 

(34)% 
--- _ (51)% 

50% 

57% 
65% 
99% 
37% 
64% 
59% 
51 % 
50% 
91% 

- ------------

55 % 

10% 
52% ----------

(50)% 

--------------

(100)% 

{l Q())1l> 
(I OO)'Yo 

(533m 

42% 

3,209_'to 

Total Budget 
Variance 

(48,279) 

(34) 
(48,313) 

17,872 

1,254 
3,818 

394 
74 
64 

352 
1,225 
8,450 

365 
15,997 

48 
33,91§_ 

(14,397) 

27,000 

5,000 
3J,_OO_Q 

1_7,§03 

1,652 

19,255 



CITY OF DUNDEE 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

452 - Storm Water CIP Fund 
From 12/1/2015 Through 12/31/2015 

(In Whole Numbers) 

Percent Total 
Current Period Current Year Budget Total Budget 

Actual Actual Total Budget Remaining Variance 

REVENUES 
Charges for Services 

0 0 12,000 (100)% (12,000) 
Miscellaneous Revenues 

19 106 200 - ·- - (47)% (94) 
Total REVENUES 19 106 12,200 (99)% (12,094) 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital Outlay 

0 -·- l],187 512,500 97% 499,313 
Total EXPENDITURES 0 13,187 512,500 97% 499,313 

Excess (deficiency) of Revenue over 19 (13,081) (500,300) (97)% 487,219 
Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Debt Proceeds 

0 0 350,000 (100)% (350,000) 
Transfers In 

0 0 15,000 (100)% (15,000) 
Other 

lnterfund Loan 0 0 90,000 (100}% (90,000) 
Total Other 0 0 90,000 _{100)% (90,000) 

Total OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 0 0 455,000 (100)')/o - {455,000) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 19 (13,081) (45,300) -- (71)% 3~,219 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 
49,958 63,058 46,100 37% 16,958 

ENDING FUND BALANCE _49,977 _1_2)277 8QO _ 6,147% 49,177 



January 28, 2016 

Mr. Rob Daykin 
City Administrator 
City of Dundee 
PO Box 220 
620 SW 5th Street 
Dundee, OR 97115 

Subject: Change Order #1 
Manhole Repair Project 
City of Dundee 

Dear Mr. Daykin: 

Kennedy/Jenks Consultants 
Engineers & Scientists 

421 SW61
h Ave. , Suite 1000 

Portland, Oregon 97204 
503-423-4000 

FAX: 503-295-4901 

The City has contracted with C-More Pipe to complete the manhole repair scope of work 
presented to and approved by City Council at the January 19, 2016 council meeting. The 
contract is currently approved for $11,442 which includes repair of 12 manholes that were 
identified as having significant infiltration leaks. Concurrent to soliciting bids from contractors, 
City staff continued to investigate and identify additional leaking manholes that could be added 
to this repair project. Through these efforts, a total of 10 additional manholes have been 
identified. The location, condition, and repair needs along with a Request for Quote were 
developed and provided to C-More Pipe. The subsequent quote package and RFQ documents 
are attached to this letter for your review. The work requested was similar to the original quote 
package, requesting repair of the bottom joint and the identified defects (leaks) . A breakdown of 
their quote is as follows: 

Manhole ID Quote Cost 
82 $ 961 
89 $ 961 

279 $ 961 
287 $ 961 
29 $ 961 

259 $ 961 
86 $ 1,076 

296 $ 1,021 
27 $ 1,021 
84 $ 1,261 

Total $ 10,145.00 



Mr. Rob Daykin 
City of Dundee 
Manhole Repair Project 
January 28, 2016 
Page 2 

Kennedy/Jenks Consultants 

The original contracted work also quoted each manhole individually with costs per manhole 
ranging from $761 to $1,356. Costs quoted for this additional work appear in line with previously 
provided quotes submitted under a competitive quote environment. · 

In addition to securing quotes for these additional manholes, I have requested and been 
provided time and material rates from C-More Pipe, which is also included as an attachment to 
this letter. These rates will be referenced should any additional defects be identified during the 
contracted repair work. As previous inspections have only been from the 'top down', personnel 
inside the manhole may discover additional defects that require repair. Should additional defects 
be identified, they will be communicated to City staff who will be in the field during the repair 
work. If City staff concurs with the presence and severity of the identified defect, I recommend 
we take this opportunity to correct and repair the defect while the contractor's crew is onsite. 

Manhole Repair Recommendation 

It is the recommendation of Kennedy/Jenks to pursue repair of as many of these manholes as 
can be identified. Therefore, after review of the quote for these additional manholes, 
Kennedy/Jenks recommends the City proceed with these added manhole repairs for a change 
order cost of $10, 145. 

One note of clarification on C-More Pipe's quote; they have a standard exclusion clause stating 
a potential standby rate should they be delayed in their work. C-More Pipe has disclosed that 
this is their standard clause when preforming work as a sub-contractor. As C-More Pipe is the 
prime contractor here in Dundee, this clause does not apply and can be struck out. Since City of 
Dundee cannot be responsible for ensuring no delays from "any other party" we recommend this 
clause does in fact get struck out. 

If you'd like any additional information or have questions, I will be attending the February 2nd 

council meeting to discuss. In the meantime, please feel free to contact me at your convenience 
if you would like to discuss further. 

Very Truly Yours, 
KENNEDY/JENKS CONSULTANTS 

µ!cf&~ 
Michael Humm, P.E. 
Enclosures: Request for Quote and C-More Pipe quote documents 



C-!More fipe Services PROPOSAL 

Attention Job Number 
Brooke Harrison I 1468MH 
Proposal submitted to: Office Phone 
Kennedy/Jenks Consultants I 503-295-4911 
Street Job Name 

PO Number 

Fax 
I 503-295-4901 

C-More Pipe Services Co. 
9350 Rickreall Rd. 
Rickreall, OR 97371 
(503) 623-1319 

Date 
I January25, 2016 
Cell Phone 

200 SW Market St., Ste. 500 I City of Dundee Manhole Rehabilitation Project 
City State ~Z_ip~--~ 
Portland ~ j~97_2_0_1 _~ 

Job Location 
I Dundee, OR 

We hereby submit applications and estimates for: 

Change Order #1: 
Labor & Equipment to Chemically Seal Identified I/I Leaks in Manholes per Addendum Sununary # 1 

• MH # 8, 89, 279, 287, 29, 259 = $961/Ea. 
• MH # 86 = $1,076.00 
• MH # 296 & 27 = $1.021.00/Ea 
• MH #84 = $1,261.00 

Exclusions: Major traffic control or DOT permits, by-pass pumping, water meter deposit, and debris disposal fees. 
CMPS accepts no liability for unforeseeable conditions. Any delay resulting from any other party besides CMPS will 
result in an hourly rate charge of $250/Hr. Any additional labor & materials beyond the identified I/I leak 
identification and scope of this project quoted above will be determined prior to proceeding past the original scope and 
will require a written change order prior to proceeding. 

Client to Provide (as needed): 
• Water for Cleaning and related hydrant permit fees 
• Debris Disposal Site/Spray Unit Wash Out Area 
• Map and project specific documentation 
• Signed proposal acceptance and/or verbal acceptance of proposal and request to proceed 

Payments shall be made within 30 days following the date of the invoice or completion of work, whichever is earlier. A late charge of I 'h percent per month 
will be assessed on unpaid balances. In the event suit or action, including any appeal therefrom, is brought to enforce any terms of this agreement, the prevailing 
party shall be entitled to such reasonable attorney's fees and costs as may be awarded by the t1ial and appellate courts. 

We propose hereby to furnish material and labor- complete in accordance with above specifications, for the sum of: 
Dollars $ TBD 

Authorized 
Signature ----"<B=!Jlf,==--:M='([)""-t!l""':M"""'"C""C=aY--"-"-:M'""''Jl.'"":N~<F<='IJ?,<JJ==O 

BRENDA MCCOY-MANFREDO, VP OPS 

All material is guaranteed to be as specified. All work to be completed in a 
workmanlike manner according to standard practices. Any alteration or 
deviation from above specifications involving extra cost will be executed only 
upon written orders, and will become an extra charge over and above the 
estimate. All agreements contingent upon strikes, accidents or delays beyond 
our control. Owner to carry fire, tornado and other necessa1y insurance. Our 
workers are fully covered by Workmen's Compensation Insurance. Note: This proposal may be withdrawn by us if not accepted within 
~-------------------------~ _JQ_ days. 

Acceptance of Proposal - the above price, specifications and 
conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. You are autl10rized to do 
the work as specified. Payment will be made as outlined above. 

Signature __________________ _ 



(f) 
<IJ 
0 .c c co 
~ 

E 
::i 

"O c 
<IJ 

"O 

~ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 



MH# Location 
82 

86 12st Stub 

89 James Ct. 

City of Dundee, Manhole Rehabilitation Project 
Manhole Inspection Summary 

Addendum No. 1 

Type of 1&1, Location 
• 2 holes at base/riser joint (9:00 & 10:00) 

• Leak at base/riser joint 
• Potential leak at 4" lateral connection 

• 4 holes at base/riser joint (10:00 & 1:00 -
2:00) 



279 1234 Fir Crt 

287 Chabl is 

296 Scottsman Ct. 

• 2 holes in riser wall (2:00 & 3:00) 

• 4 holes at riser/cone joint (7 :00 & 10:00 -
12:00) 

• Pick holes not sealed in the riser wall (3:00 
&9:00). 

• Pin hole at riser/cone joint (10:00) 



29 gth & Elm 

259 gth St. 

84 99W & 13th 

• TBD 

• Hole at edge of flow channel 

• Sheet flow at riser/cone joint (3:00 - 5:00) 
• Field determine traffic control 

requirements (if any) 



0 
~ 
1..1') =1 

~ g ...... 
<lJ~ 

·~ ~ 
<lJ ·-

..c. .2., 
..... <lJ 
C VI ·- co -a .0 
2~ 
co <lJ 
<lJ VI 
V) ·c 
a 1ti 
c $ 
VI Q 
2 <+= 
0 ..... 

..c. <lJ 
~ <lJ 
u ..c. 
0:: Lfl 

• • 

E 
UJ 

~ 



Michael Humm 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Brenda McCoy <brenda@cmorepipe.com> 
Tuesday, January 26, 2016 3:15 PM 
Michael Humm; Brooke Harrison 
'Chuck Simpson' 
Time/Materials List - Dundee 

Per our discussion, for any additional I/I leaks that may be encountered beyond the scope of the project in a manhole that 
cannot be immediately stopped quickly and exceeds % gpm or more flow and we end up "chasing the leak" we will stop 
and discuss to determine appropriate long term solution. Repairs will be billed on a time/materials basis based on the 
following: 

Time - $145/hr for 2 person crew 
Materials - $18.50/gal for AV-100 grout 
Materials - $9.50/gal for Speed Plug 
Materials - $46/bag for 50# Bag of Emaco S88 

Spray-All alternative- spray%" cementitious mortar on entire interior of wall is $165NF. Sealing entire bench with%" 
cementitious mortar= $165. 

Brenda McCoy-Manfredo 
VP Operations 
C-More Pipe Services Co 
PO Box69 
Rickreall, OR 97371 
PH/F: 503-623-1319 
C: 970-227-4254 



To: Dundee City Council 

From: Greg Reid, City Engineer 

Date: 1/27/2016 

Re: Highway 99W, 10th Street Improvements - Change Order #1 and Schedule Update 

The following provides a summary of the currently anticipated Change Order #1 costs for the 
project resulting from the ODOT permit review comments and storm water design issues 
associated with the unknown existing drainage system invert elevations. A summary of the 
current construction schedule is also provided. 

Change Order #1 Costs 

1. The existing highway pavement removal and replacement area was required to be 
increased by ODOT to remove more of the existing concrete slab beneath the asphalt. 
ODOT indicated that this will provide a more stable design and reduce future maintenance. 
Since ODOT asked for the concrete slab to be removed to the next transverse joint in the 
concrete slabs which are hidden beneath the asphalt paving, the actual area of removal will 
have to be verified in the field and a unit cost for this effort has been obtained from the 
contractor. Council previously approved up to $25,000 for the additional cost for asphalt 
removal and replacement. See the attached C0#1 plans, list of C0#1 changes & Bid 
Tabulation showing the changes and currently anticipated costs based on field observations. 

2 . The proposed 10th Street driveway design was reviewed by ODOT who determined that it 
was not ADA compliant and suggested it be redesigned with a raised (6") island at the turning 
radii of the driveway. Although the ODOT design does present some concerns, Staff 
previously recommended and Council approved moving forward with the ODOT design to 
avoid further delays to the project. See the attached Bid Tabulation showing the changes to 
the bid items and associated costs. See the attached C0#1 plans, list of C0#1 changes & 
Bid Tabulation showing the new driveway layout and associated bid item changes and costs. 

3. The replacement of the existing 24" storm drain outlet pipe extending across the highway 
was previously approved by Council to avoid construction issues related to the unknown pipe 
depth and since the cost to line the existing pipe was not significantly cheaper than the cost to 
replace the pipe. Due to the design changes necessary to accommodate the replacement of 
the 24" pipe and the revised driveway design, additional design items were revised which 
resulted in quantity and associated cost adjustments. See the attached C0#1 plans, list of 
C0#1 changes & Bid Tabulation. 

Phone 503.538.3922 * Fax 503.538. 1958 
620 SW Fifth Street * PO Box 220 * Dundee, Oregon 97115 

E-mai l: DundeeCity3@comcast.net 



5. Council previously approved up to an additional $27,695.05 for Change Order #1. After 
completing the design revisions described above and shown on the attached Bid Tabulation, 
the current cost for C0#1 is $27,575.90. Since the currently anticipated cost is less than the 
previously approved amount, no additional authorization is needed at this time. 

Construction Schedule 

Work began at the site on the night of January 19th with saw cutting, pavement removal and 
the installation of the new sewer main extending across Hwy 99W and up 1 oth Street along 
the Community Center. Although the ODOT review comments and storm design changes 
significantly delayed the start of construction, the delay may have been a blessing in disguise 
since it prevented construction from being in progress during last year's flood event. 
Weitman worked with only a 3 person crew the first week but has now increased to 5 people. 
Unfortunately, ground and storm water continues to hinder progress due to the rain event 
towards the end of the first week of work and a broken storm pipe flooding the excavation 
during the sewer pipe installation last week. At this time, night work continues with 
construction completion anticipated by the end of February or early March. 



City of Dundee 
Highway 99W, 10th Street Improvements 

Change Order #1 - List of Changes 

Date: 1/6/2016 
Revision: 0 

Sheet Item Description of Change Quantity Change 
Revised sidewalk layout with increase in Concrete Walk and Walk: +16SF 

211 2 
decrease in Pavement Repair Pavement: -414 SF 

211 3 Revise maximum Concrete Walk slope to 7.5% None 
211 5 Revised sidewalk layout with decrease Walk:-23 SF 

211 6 
Revised Driveway layout and Pavement Repair area with Driveway: -19 SF 
decrease in Driveway area and increase in Pavement Repair Pavement: +1130 SF 

211 8 
Revised Sawcut layout and Pavement Repair area with decrease 

Pavement: -378 SF 
in Pavement Repair 

211 10 
Revised Sawcut layout and Pavement Repair area with increase 

Pavement: +640 SF 
in Pavement Repair 

211 13 Revised Curb layout at driveway with increase in Curb Curb: +44 LF 

311 STM 1 
Reduce length of 30" A-2000 Pipe and increase depth of invert 

30" Pipe: -16 LF 
by 0.59 feet 

311 STM 2 
Revised 18" A-2000 pipe layout and eliminated MFR Coupling 

18" Pipe: +8 LF 
with increase in pipe length 

10" Pipe: -4 LF 

311 
Replace G-2 Inlet with Manhole with G-2 Inlet; eliminate 10" A- Tee: -1 EA 

STM4 
2000 Pipe and 18" x 10" Tee; adjust Rim and Invert G-2 Inlet: -1 EA 

60" Manhole with Inlet: +1 EA 

311 STM5 
Replace 29 feet of 15" A-2000 Pipe with 18 feet of 8" A-2000 15" Pipe: -29 LF 
Pipe 8" Pipe: +18 LF 

311 STM 6 Relocate Flow Control Manhole and Adjust Rim and Inverts None 
311 STM7 Adjust Rim and Inverts None 

311 STM8 
Replace 15 feet of 12" A-2000 Pipe with 11 feet of 8" A-2000 12" Pipe: -15 LF 
Pipe 8" Pipe: +11 LF 

311 STM9 Increase length of 12" A-2000 Pipe 12" Pipe: +6 LF 
311 STM 10 Relocated Manhole and adjust Rim and Inverts None 
311 STM 11 Adjust manhole Rim and Inverts None 
311 STM 13 Reduce length of 18" A-2000 Pipe 18" Pipe: -10 LF 
311 STM 14 Reduce length of 12" A-2000 Pipe and lower invert at bell 12" Pipe: -2 LF 

311 STM 15 
Change 48" Manhole to 60" Manhole with G-2 Inlet; adjust Rim 48" Manhole: -1 EA 
and Inverts 60" Manhole with Inlet: +1 EA 

311 STM 16 Adjust Rim and lower inverts None 
311 STM 18 Lower inverts None 
311 STM 20 Lower inverts None 

Eliminate CIPP Liner, add removal of existing 24" Concrete Pipe CIPP Liner: -42 LF 
311 STM 22 

and add 60 feet of 24" A-2000 Pipe 24" Pipe: +60 LF 
311 STM23 Eliminate 2" PVC Pipe 2" Pipe: -28 LF 
311 STM 24 Change description of pipe Termination None 
311 San 1 Relocate Manhole and adjust Rim and Inverts None 
311 San 2 Increase length of 8" Sanitary Pipe 8" San Pipe: +4 LF 
311 San 3 Relocate Manhole and adjust Rim and Inverts None 
311 San4 Reduce length of 8" Sanitary Pipe 8" San Pipe: -5 LF 
411 2 Change Flange Bend to Mechanical Joint Bend None 
411 3 Reduce length of 10" DI Pipe 10" DI Pipe: -1 LF 

411 5 
Increase Length of 10" DI Pipe and change pipe bends from 

10" DI Pipe: +1 LF 
Flange to Mechanical Joints 
Change two Flange Gate Valves to one MJ and one FLG X MJ 

411 6 Gate Valves; change two Flange Bends to one MJ and one FLG X None 
MJ Bends 
Change Flange Tee to MJ X MJ X FLG Tee; change two Flange 

411 7 Bends to two FLG X MJ Bends; change Flange Gate Valve to FLG x None 
MJ Gate Valve 

411 9 Decrease length of 10" DI Pipe 10" DI Pipe: -1 LF 
511 N/A Re-route conduits None 
611 N/A Re-route conduits None 
803 N/A Revised Driveway layout and Lip Exposure See Sheet 211 



SHEET NOTES 
(SHEIT SPECIFIC) 
I.I SAWCUT AND REMOVE EXISTING SURFACING & LEVEL UNDERLYING BASE 

SAWCUT AND REMOVE EXISTING SIDEWALK 
CONSTRUCT STANDARD CURB - 20 LF 
CONSTRUCT CONCRETE WALK - 'T3 50 SF 
MATCH EXISTING SIDEWALK AT 7 .5% MAX SLOPE 

r.::l INSTALL PRECAST DECORATIVE SIDEWALK PANEL - 2 EA 
L:J FURNISHED BY OTHERS 

(SEE DETAIL 1 SHEET 805) 

L..'..J INS"FALL "fYPE CL 6 Cl IA!tl LINIE FENCE Wffll SLATS 85 LF 
lllS'fP<LL 18 FSOT GI ll<lll LINIE DOUBLE GATES (WITI I Sb,TS) 1 G'CI I 

FIELD VERIFY AND COORDINATE: MATCH LOCATION ANO GRADES 
(SEE STD. DWG. RD302, RD700 AND RD720) 

Q SAWCUT AND REMOVE SURFACING AND CONCRETE PAVEMENT 
l...'...::'...I CONSTRUCT PAVEMENT REPAIR - ~ 936 SF 

(SEE DETAIL 3 SHEET 805) SEE STD. DWG. RD815 

SAWCUT AND REMOVE CURB, DRIVEWAY, SURFACING AND CONCRETE 
PAVEMENT 
CONSTRUCT CONCRETE WALKS WITH SCORING - 889 896 SF 
CONSTRUCT PAVEMENT REPAIR (SEE NOTE 6) - 59 143 SF 
(SEE DETAIL 1 SHEET 805) 
(SEE STD. DWG. RD302 AND R0720) 

r-:;-i3 SAWCUT AND REMOVE EXISTING SIDEWALK AND CURB 
L..::...J CONSTRUCT STANDARD CURB - 12 LF 

CD#! 

CONSTRUCT CONCRETE WALKS - 65 SF ~ 
MATCH EXISTING SIDEWALK AND CURB A\~:'.'.~-tAX SLOPE 

[--;-J CONSTRUCT ASPHALT APPROACH - 470 SF CD#! 
L..:.J (SEE DETAIL 2 SHEET 806) 

I 

l,;l SAWCUT AND REMOVE CURB, DRIVEWAY, SURFACING AND CONCRETE 
~ PAVEMENT; REMOVE CONCRETE PAVEMENT TO LONGITUDINAL LINE NEAR 

MEDIAN AND TO NEXT TRANSVERSE JOINTS (FIELD VERIFY WITH CITY) 
CONSTRUCT P.C. CONCRETE DRIVEWAY, MODIFIED- u+ 42 SY 
CONSTRUCT MODIFIED SIDEWALK RAMPS 
CONSTRUCT PAVEMENT REPAIR - ~ 1557 SF 
(SEE DETAIL 1, SHEET 803 AND DETAIL 3 SHEET 805) 
(SEE STD. DWG. RD302 AND RD756) CO#! 

r::;l REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE STAIRS, BENCH & RAILING 
L'...J NEW STAIRS BY OTHERS; SALVAGE BENCH TO OWNER 

~1j_ I :\ \ .. r: : :, ---- i _________ i ____ i __ j _ 
+ ' 
S!l 
ru .... 

991,/ 
I I 

I I 
I I 

I I 
I I 
I I 

I I 
I I 

/<@ / 
I 

(SEE STD. DWG. RD302) 

SURFACING 

Q SAWCUT AND REMOVE EXISTING SURFACING 
~ CONSTRUCT STANDARD CURB - 40 LF 

(SEE STD. DWG. RD302 AND RD700) 

r;:;-J SAWCUT AND REMOVE EXISTING CURB AND SURFACING 
L'..:'.J CONSTRUCT STANDARD CURB - 49 201 LF 

(SEE STD. DWG. RD302 AND RD700) 
COii! Q SAWCUT AND REMOVE EXISTING SIDEWALK 

L'..:J CONSTRUCT P.C. CONCRETE SIDEWALK - 39 SF 

@ 

SCALE: 1:20 : 1~ ! ~ I I 
/ r I i r [ [ 

r 

~ CITYO# 

~~~NDEE I 

~·rr ·, ur u11:-u1.:1 
•·!U ~\\' :l<b~b<~• 

l'O.J\o~~;.i 1'11'1:~111~~1:.3~~ 
11 .. 1 ....... . Lii• ~; 1 1 .• h. (;><11 1 ~ ·~- ! · ~~ 

PROJECT NUMBER: 14001 

OR99W-Dundee (Phase A) 
Highway 99W 
1 OTH STREET IMPROVEMENTS 

DUNDEE, OR 97115 

REVISION: 
CH.o\NG!! OADl!R • I 

DRAWN BY: GSR 
ISSUE DATE: JANUARY 2016 
FILE NAME: 

OundooGcnar:1l Con:truc11on.dwg 

CONTRACT PLANS 

SHEET: 

GENERAL 
CONSTRUCTION 

211 



STORM NOTES 
(SHEU SPE..:.C~IF:.._IC"-).,....,~~~..-...--.,,...""',,._,.__.,...........,~ 

INSTALL .+5 29 LF OF 30" A-2000 PIPE 
IE OUTLET (30" SE) 189.12 
FIELD VERIFY GRADE & REGRADE EXISTING DITCH 

r:;1 REMOVE DUS'FltlG 18" COllCRCTE PIPE 
L:..J INSTALL +r 20 LF OF 18" A-2000 PVC PIPE 

ltlST•\ll 18" 45· MFR. Brno 
COWIEC'F 'FD DEIS'FIHG 16" COtlCRCTE PIPE Wl'FI I 
MFR COUPUtlG 

INSTALi. -+a" 60" MANHOLE WITH G-2 INLET 
AND TYPE 2 GRATE 
RIM 194.1 O FIELD VERIFY WITH CITY 
IE IN (€* 24" NW) 189.47 
IE IN (12" NE) 189,47 
IE OUT (30" SE) 189.27 
(SEE STD DWG RD348) 

0 REMOVE EXISTING INLET AND OUTLET PIPE 
INSTALL 48" MANHOLE 
RIM 194.27 FIELD VERIFY WITH CITY CD#! 

l,;'l COHSTRUC'F WPE G 2 IHLCT Wl'FI I WPE 2 SRATE 
L2.J CONSTRUCT 60" MANHOLE WITH G-2 INLET AND 

lYPE 2 GRATE COllSTRUC'F SUMP 
REMOVE EXISTING 18" CONCRETE PIPE 
RIM 194.31 
IE IN (EX 18" NW) 191.48 FIELD VERIFY 
IE OUT (1 8" SE) 191.40 
ltlSTALL 4 LF OF 1 O" A 2000 PVC PIPE 
ltlTALL 16")(18°' TEE 
IE 10'" AT TEE 191.73± 

E ST WG RD348 

r;;l INSTALL 48" FLOW CONTROL MANHOLE 
l...'.:'..J (FURNISHED BY OTHERS) 

RIM 194.50 FIELD VERIFY 
IE IN (18" E) 191.33 
IE OUT (8" NW) 191.13 
IE OUT (18°' SW) 191.13 

~~:~c~o~NEL~~TI~N6_;ii~·30 CD#l 

r-:;-i INSTALL 60" WATER QUALITY MANHOLE 
L...'...J (FURNISHED BY OTHERS) 

RIM 195. 1 1 FIELD VERITY 
IE IN (8" SE) 191.04 
IE OUT (8" SW) 190.30 

0 INSTALL 11 LF OF 8" # A-2000 PVC PIPE 

0 INSTALi. +7- 23 LF OF 12'" A-2000 PVC PIPE 

Q INSTALL 48" MANHOLE 
~ RIM 194.37 FIELD VERIFY 

IE IN (8" NE) 190.24 
IE OUT (12" SE) 190.04 
(SEE STD DWG RD336, RD343, RD345 & RD356) 

f":":l INSTALL 48" MANHOLE 
l...'...'...J RIM 194.32 FIELD VERIFY 

IE IN ~12" NW) 190.01 
IE IN 18" NE) 190.01 
IE IN 15" SW) 190.01 
IE OUT (24" SE) 189.81 
(SEE STD DWG RD336, RD343, RD345 & RD356) 

LF OF 18" A-2000 PVC PIP 

1,:1 INSTALL * 29 LF OF 12" A-2000 PVC PIPE 
L.'.2J TERMINATE AT A BELL WITH A PLUG 

IE AT BELL 189.51; SLOPE 0.57. 

IE IN (EX 12" SW) 190.98 FIELD VERIFY 
IE IN (15" NW) 190.29 
IE OUT (15" NE) 190.19 
(SEE STD DWG RD336, RD343, RD345 & 
RD356) CD#! 

r;;;;-J INSTALi. TYPE G-2 INLET WITH TYPE 2 GRATE 
~ CONSTRUCT SUMP 

RIM 194.02 FIELD VERIFY WITH CITY 
IE IN (NW) 190.94 FIELD VERIFY 
IE OUT (12" SW) 190.94 
(SEE STD DWG RD336, RD364 & RD365) 

@] ~&~~L c~ONNL~c~~N STORM PIPE 
INSTALi. ELBOW (FIELD VERIFY ANGLE) 
CONNECT TO EXISTING STORM PIPE 
(FIELD VERIFY, DEPTH, SIZE AND TYPE OF PIPE) 

CLEAtl AtlD INSPECT DEISTltlS 24" STORM PIPE 
HIST/ell 42 LF GIPP LltlER, 2 4 INCi! 
REMOVE EXISTING 24" CONCRETE PIPE 
INSTALL-60 LF OF 24" A-2000 PVC PIPE CD#l 

r:;-,;"] INSTALL 10 LF OF 4" PVC 
L:2J IE IN MANHOLE 24" ABOVE DECK 

INSTALL LONG SWEEP BENDS 
TERMINATE ABOVE GROUND wtTt!tlH<EAR 
ENCLOSURE LOCATION (AS DIRECTED) 

CD#! 
D#l ~ TESTING EQUIPMENT ENCLOSURE (BY OTHERS) 

~ REMOVE EXISTING STORM PIPE 

r.---""i. 4~' / 
GRAPHICAL SCALE IN FEET 

SCALE: 1:20 

SANITARY NOTES 
(SHEU SPECIFIC) 

. f\ INSTALL 48" MANHOLE 
L..!_:,. RIM 194.35± FIELD VERIFY WITH CITY 

IE IN (EX 12" NE) 187.30 
IE IN (8" NW) 187.47 
IE OUT (EX 12" SW) 187.27 
(SEE STD DWG RD336, RD343, RD345 & RD356) 

.ffi INSTALL 5+ 58 LF OF 8" SANITARY PIPE 

f\ INSTALL 48" MANHOLE 
~ RIM 194.32 FIELD VERITY WITH CITY 

IE IN (8" NW) 187 .90 
IE OUT (8" SE) 187.70 
(SEE STD DWG RD336, RD343, RD345 & RD356) 

SL 0.407. 

(/) 
-I 
Al 
fT1 
fT1 
-I 

GENERAL NOTES 
(SHEU SPECIFIC) 

1. PIPE TRENCHING AND BEDDING 
PER OOOT STD. DWG. RD300. 

2. CONTRACTOR TO PROTECT ALL 
EXISTING FEATURES TO 
REMAIN . 

3. ALI. EXCAVATION WORK WITHIN 
HIGHWAY TO BE DONE AT 
NIGHT IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
COOT PERMIT. 

~ CITYOj 

~~1[NDEE I 

l'.rf tUl' lll•MWI 
1..!(ISW ~Lh~~-.-. 

t>n.n .. , z7,1 11r1511.1, ,: .. :.J-J:~ 
11~n.i..·.Ol• ~711~ h.-jloJ1;~,..J·•:-~ 

CONSULTANT: 

PROJECT NUMBER: 14001 

OR99W-Dundee (Phase A) 
Highvvay 99W 
1 OTH STREET IMPROVEMENTS 

DUNDEE, OR 97115 

DRAWN BY: CLE 
ISSUE DATE: JANUARY 20 16 
FILE NAME: 

Dundoo Storm.dwg 

CONTRACT PLANS 

SHEET: 

SEWER 

311 



WATER NOTES 
(SHEIT SPECIFIC) 

0 INSTALL 1 o• DI PIPE WITH CLASS 8 BACKflLL - 87 LF 
INSTALL 10" MFR PLUG OR CAP - 1 EACH 0 0r 
RESTRAIN ALL PIPE JOINTS CONSTRUCT WATERLINE CROSSING UNDER STOR~P 7 INSTALL FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY 

0 INSTALL 1 O" DI PIP Wrni CLASS 8 BACKflLL 55' 56 LF /N ALL 1 O"X6 MJ X M TEE 
INSTALL 1 O" DI PIPE WITH CLASS B BACKflLL - 16 LF INSTALL 1 O" flG MJ 5· DI PIPE BENO - 4 EAC CD#l INSTALL 6" FLG X MJ DI PIPE BEND - 2 EACH 
~~~-~ ~ ~l~i~ DI P[PE :B~~D -=~# INSTALL 10" D OOL - 2 EACH INSTALL 6" FLG X MJ GATE VALVE CD#l 

RESTRAIN ALL PIPE JOINTS CD l ~~~T~~u;LL ~l~~NTS ~EG~A-LUG ~~~gl'N,.; 2 
EACH 

0 8 0 (SEE STD. DWG. RD254) 
INSTALL 1 D" DI PIPE Wrni CLASS B BACKflLL il9 59 LF 6 INSTA " " TEE 0 

NSTALL 10" FLG X MJ GATE VALVE - % 1 EACH INSTALL 1" WATER SERVICE CONNECTION PIPING - 6 LF 

0 CD#l INSTALL 1 O" MJ GATE VALVE - 1 EACH CD#2 INSTALL 1 "XW ANGLE STOP - 1 EACH 
INSTALL 1" WATER SERVICE CONNECTION PIPING - 21 lF INS ALL 1 DI SPOOL RELOCATE ~· WATER METER ASSEMBLY 
INSTALL 1 ·~· ANGLE STOP - 1 EACH INSTALL 8" FLG G TE VALVE RECONNECT EXISTING WATER SERVICE, 1 INCH 
INSTALL l{,"XW WATER METER ASSEMBLY (METER RJRNISHED BY IN ALL 8" f1£ MJ 45· DI PIPE BEND - ~ 1 EACH TEMPORARY SERVICE TO BE ESTABLISHED BY CITY 
CITY) INSTA L 8" FLG X MJ 45' DI PIPE BEND - 1 EACH PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION 
RECONNECT EXISTING WATER SERVICE, 1 INCH INSTALL 8' DI SPOOL CD#l (SEE STD. DWG. RD274) 

A CUT AND CAP EXISTING 4" WATERLINE V INSTALL 4" MFR PLUG OR CAP - 1 EACH 
INSTALL TEMPORARY THRUST BLOCKING 
COORDINATE TEMPORARY SHUT DOWN FOR CUT 
AND CAP WITH CITY 

~INSTALL 2• CONNECTION TO 4 INCH EXISTING V MAJN - 2 EACH 
INSTALL 2• TYPE K COPPER PIPE - 11 LF 

AcUT AND CAP 4• WATERLINE V INSTALL 4" MFR PLUG OR CAP - 1 EACH 
INSTALL TEMPORARY THRUST BLOCKING 
COORDINATE TEMPORARY SHUT DOWN FOR CUT 
AND CAP Wrni CITY 

REMOVE EXISTING GATE VALVE AND WATER SERVICE LINE INSTALL 8" 01 PIPE Wrni CLASS 8 BACKflLL - 33 lF ~ ~ 
~~~~~o~ERVICE TO BE ESTABLISHED BY CITY PRIOR TO INSTALL a" MFR PLUG OR CAP VINSTALL 1D" DI PIPE Wrni CLASS B BACKFlll ~ 
(SEE STD. DWG. RD274) MEG-A-LUG ALL JOINTS ~E5it~N1~M~p:~~~~ CAP CD#l 

_L.! 
WTR WTR ""\""_--_--_-WTR 

----- - <;ti ------1.i ---- --SO -- ----'.lD - -- ---:;ti -- ----!."O ------!'.ll ~::::.-=..-_-;:::.-_-_-..:-.-:-.:---_:-.:: · -- ill - ----- ~ll ----- - -.ii --(!l J-);(p.:i;;\:(~JJ"\':'.': 

12 

- - - '!A.-.-- --- -:ONI - - - - - - IN! - - - - - - :WI - -----~----- - Q.111--- -- - • :'M'l'I - - - - - ~- -- -- -SAii - - - - - - ~- - - - - - 5.UI 

o· 20· 

GRAPHICAL SCALE IN FEET 
SCALE: 1:20 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
L---------

I r 
I 

l"l1 1 UF 1Jt •:< Un 1 
rC.'llSW!>ll1~lh"-1 
1•0. n .. , ::111 ri1·1$o ll1•.,,:..N; : 
llun.l~·r. (•!< "' I I~ f·•~ (l" l.1 I ;1~ .... J ·1~A 

CONSULTANT: 

PROJECT NUMBER: 14001 

OR99W-Dundee (Phase A) 
Highway 99VV 
1 OTH STREET IMPROVEMENTS 

DUNDEE, OR9711 5 

DRAWN BY: GSR 
ISSUE DATE: JANUARY 20Hi 
FILE NAME: 

DundooW;itcr.dw(l 

CONTRACT PLANS 

SHEET: 

WATER 

411 



FRANCHISE UTILITY NOTES 
(SHEU SPECIFIC) 

DJ FURNISH AND INSTALL 3'X5' ENCLOSURE, PG3660Z58409 - 1 EA 

0 FURNISH AND INSTALL 253TA VAULT - 1 EA 

0 FURNISH AND INSTALL 17"X30" FIBERLYTE BOX, FL36T - 1 EA 
FIELD VERIFY EXISTING GAS AND RELOCATE IF NEEDED 

0 TERMINATE AND TEMPORARILY CAP OR PLUG CONDUITS 

GENERAL NOTES 
1. CONDUIT LAYOUTS SHOWN IS SCHEMATIC. FIELD VERIFY AND ADJUST 

LAYOUT TO AVOID CONFLICTS WITH EXISTING AND PROPOSED UTILITIES 
AND IMPROVEMENTS. 

2. CONTRACTOR TO INSTALL PULL TAPE IN ALL COMPLETED 
3. SEE UTILl1Y TRENCH SECTIONS SHEET 807 

:·-.. ..... . . :~ 
.:.;.'._._ ;. ; "· 

CONDUIT RUNS 

LEGEND 
(SHEU SPECIFIC) 

© FURNISH AND INSTALL X"¢ SCH 40 PVC CONDUIT 

---- FRONTIER CONDUITS 

-·- COMCAST CONDUITS 

----< TERMINATE CONDUIT UNDERGROUND AND CAP; CONTINUED BY 
OTHERS 

---0 SWEEP CONDUIT ABOVEGROUND AND CAP; CONTINUED BY 
OTHERS 

---- -----

I 
I 

(/) I -I 
I I ;u 

r ri I ri I -I I 
I I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
~ I 
[I 
'I 
11 
+1 
i! I 

r: 
.,. 
+ .,. 
-..J 
:...i 
(J\ 

r 

O' 20' 

GRAPHICAL SCALE IN FEET 
SCALE: 1:20 

40' 

<..'l1 r l li' llut-r.cr. 
•i:!C•SW~U1:l1"·d 
~ o.n .. ~z.·1•• ,,,. , ~ ,.Ii ~ :w:..,1.,:~ 

flt.n.lr..f•J• 'f'l' I I.< h~(!-1!11~J~l'T.'~ 

CONSULTANT: 

PROJECT NUMBER: 14001 

OR99W-Dundee (Phase A) 
High\Nay 99W 
1 OTH STREET IMPROVEMENTS 

DUNDEE, OR 97115 

C!1 ANC!; ORDER J 1 

DRAWN BY: 
ISSUE DATE: 
FILE NAME: 

GSR 
JANUARY 2016 

OundccFr:incl'lli;o U1ll!tlc:1.dwg 

CONTRACT PLANS 

SHEET: 

FRANCHISE 
UTILITIES 

511 



" ~ 
" ~ 
~ 
~ 

i 
~ 
0 

~ 

ILLUMINATION NOTES 
(SHEET SPECIFIC) 

ffi TERMINATE AND TEMPORARILY CAP OR PLUG CONDUITS 

& CONSTRUCT STREET LIGHT FOUNDATION FOR 21 FOOT POLE 
PRECAST NOT ALLOWED 
SEE DETAIL 2 SHEET 805 AND DETAIL 3 SHEET 807 

GENERAL NOTES 
1. CONDUIT LAYOUT SHOWN IS SCHEMATIC. FIELD VERIFY AND ADJUST 

LAYOUT TO AVOID CONFLICTS WITH EXISTING AND PROPOSED UTILITIES 
AND IMPROVEMENTS. 

2. CONTRACTOR TO INSTALL PULL TAPE IN ALL CONDUITS 
3 . SEE DETAILS 1 AND 2 SHEET 807 
4. FIELD VERITY EXISTING GAS AND RELOCATE IF NEEDED. 

" 

LEGEND 
(SHEET SPECIFIC) 

FURNISH AND INSTALL X"¢ RIGID NON-METALIC ELECTRICAL 
CON OU IT 

BASE MOUNTED CONTROL CABINET (BY OTHERS) - NOT USED 

-~-ILLUMINATION CONDUITS 

®FURNISH ANO INSTALL 11"X18"X18" J-BOX 

ffi FURNISH AND INSTALL 13"X24"X18" J-BOX - NOT USED 

® FURNISH AND INSTALL 20"X21"X24" J-80X 

'.; 
IU 
+ 
U1 
U1 
'--J w 
;u 

I 

I r 

I 

"' -I ;u 
fT1 
fT1 
-I 

/, 
/, 

' I 
I 
I 
I 

" I : 1 
11 
11 
~I 
1J 
I, I 

a; 
D -u 

~ 
_,,. 
+ _,,. 
-..J 
'--J 
Cl'> 

r 

o· 20• 40' 

GRAPHICAL SCALE IN FEET 
SCALE: 1:20 

lLJ! 
a; 
D -u 
r 
~ _,,. 
a 
+ co 
Cl'> 

5\ 
r 

~ CITYO(, 

~Ea1INDEE I 

1.~USW:hl1S~,'<'t 
1•!1,1~"~ /" 1i,·1:.•• •1•.l.:.H.!:: 
!lu1hk.,,. nt• 'fll I~ h .• (~cii1 ~ )~- t~j~ 

CONSULTANT: 

PROJECT NUMBER: 14001 

OR99W-Dundee (Phase A) 
Highway 99W 
1 OTH STREET IMPROVEMENTS 

DUNDEE. OR 97115 

DRAWN BY: 
ISSUE DATE: 
FILE NAME: 

GSR 
JANUARY 2016 

Oundcel!lumlrmUon.dwg 

CONTRACT PlANS 

SHEET: 

ILLUMINATION 

611 



:i! 
('j 

" 

'V 
E =· o• 

RADIUS = 8' 
E = 6' 

MATCH EXISTING 
GRADE 

0)r-P...,,. C'-'-. ---'C=O~N_,_,C"'-'-R"'""E=--'-T-'=E_C"""'O"'-'M..!.!.M'-'-"='ER_,_,C=l'--"AL=----=D"--'-R.>..!...IV"--"E=-'-W!..!..A.!..!.Y_._, __!CM~O~D:'..!.I F'-.!l~D~E D 

CD#! 

GENERAL NOTES 
(SHEET SPECIFIC) 

1. THE FOLLOWING DIMENSIONS ARE AS SHOWN ON PU\NS. OR AS 
DIRECTED: DRIVEWAY WIDTH, CURB EXPOSURE, LANDING AREA 
UENGTH AND WIDTH. 

2. CURB ANO SIDEWALK TYPES VARY, SEE PLANS. 
3. TOOLED JOINTS ARE REQUIRED AT ALL DRIVEWAY SLOPE BREAK 

LINES. 
4. MONOLITHIC CURB AND SIDEWALK SHALL RETAIN THICKENED EDGE 

THROUGH LOWERED PROFILE, TO ACCOMOOATE DRIVEWAY USE. 
SEE STD. ORG. RD720 FOR DETAILS. 

SLOPE 2Y. MAX. 

E CURB EXPOSURE 

D . . DRIVE\IAY PAY LIMIT 
<IF MONOLITHIC, INCLUDE ADJACENT CURB> 

•·~II SW :.i~ :i~~~l' lJI ' llLl;'<l>l:I. 

l'O. a·"~l•• nr1 !0!• •1,;i:.J1:~ 
ll"lkkT, (I I• Uil I ~ h .. ( ~•111 j~S-J ;I~~ 

CONSULTANT: 

PROJECT NUMBER: 14001 

OR99W-Dundee (Phase A) 
Highway 99W 
10TH STREET IMPROVEMENTS 

DUNDEE, OR 97115 

REVIS ION! 
CHANGE ORDER •1 

DRAWN BY: GSR 
ISSUE DATE: JANUARY 2016 
FILE NAME: 

Oum!co0olnll5.dwg 

CONTRACT PLANS 

SHEET: 

DETAILS 

803 



City of Dundee 
Highway 99W, 10th Street Improvements 

Change Order ta - Bid Tabula lion Changes 

Date: 1/27/ 2016 

CO#! Current Difference CO#l 
Item It Description Bid Quantity Qty Change Quantity Units Unit Price Bid Amount Cu rrent Amount (Current - Bid) Notes 

1 Mobilization (6%) 1 1 LS $32,147.00 $32,147.00 $32,147.00 $0.00 
2 Temporary Work Zone Traffic Control, Complete 1 1 LS $1S,OOO.OO $ 1S,OOO.OO $1S,OOO.OO $0.00 
3 Removal or Stru ctures and Obstructions 1 1 LS $1S,OOO.OO $1S,OOO.OO $1S,OOO.OO $0.00 

3.1 Added AC Demo and Replace 0 242 242 LS $29.25 $0.00 $7,078.SO $7,078.50 
4 Erosion Contro l, Complete 1 1 LS $2,SOO.OO $2,SOO.OO $2,S00.00 $0.00 
s Construcl ion Survey Work 1 1 LS $4,SOO.OO $4,S00.00 $4,SOO.OO $0.00 

S.1 Survey Reslaking 0 1 1 LS $1,78S.OO $0.00 $1,78S.OO $1,78S.OO 
6 Ditch Excavation 1 1 LS $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 
7 Aggregate Base 1 1 LS $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $0.00 
8 12 Inch Subgrade Stabilization 150 1SO SY $30.00 $4,SOO.OO $4,SOO.OO $0.00 
9 CIPP Liner, 24 Inch 42 -42 0 LF $32S.OO $ll,6SO.OO $0.00 -$ ll,6SO.OO 
10 Storm Conneclion 1 1 LS $2,100.00 $2,100.00 $2,100.00 $0.00 
11 2 Inch PVC Pipe 28 -28 0 LF $2S.OO $700.00 $0.00 -$700.00 
12 4 Inch PVC Pipe 10 10 LF $44.00 $440.00 $440.00 $0.00 
62 8 Inch A-2000 PVC Pipe 0 29 29 LF $63.00 $0.00 $1,827.00 $1,827.00 
13 10 Inch A-2000 PVC Pipe 35 35 LF $6S.OO $2,27S.OO $2,27S.OO $0.00 
14 12 Inch A-2000 PVC Pipe 59 -11 48 LF $69.00 $4,071.00 $3,312.00 -$7S9.00 
lS 15 Inch A-2000 PVC Pipe 79 -29 50 LF $77.00 $6,083.00 $3,8SO.OO -$2,233.00 
16 18 Inch A-2000 PVC Pipe 43 -2 41 LF $98.00 $4,214.00 $4,018.00 -$196.00 
63 24 Inch A-2000 PVC Pipe 0 60 60 LF $1S4.44 $0.00 $9,266 40 $9,166.40 
17 30 Inch A-2000 PVC Pipe 4S -16 29 LF $17S.OO $7,875.00 $S,07S.OO -$2,800.00 
18 Pipe Tees, 18 Inch 1 1 EA $980.00 $980.00 $980.00 $0.00 
19 8 Inch Sanitary Pipe 78 -1 77 LF $ 87.00 $6,786.00 $6,699.00 -$87.00 
20 lnslall Concrete Manholes, 60 Inch Water Quality 1 1 EA $S,SOO.OO $S,SOO.OO $S,SOO.OO $0.00 
21 Install Concrete Manholes, 48 Inch Flow Control 1 1 EA $2,900.00 $2,900.00 $2,900.00 $0.00 
22 Concrete Storm Sewer Manholes 4 -1 3 EA $2,900.00 $11,600.00 $8,700.00 -$2,900.00 
64 60'" Concrete Manhole with Inlet 0 2 2 EA $9,374.00 $0.00 $18,748.00 $18,748.00 Weitman to provide unit price 
23 Concrete Inlets, Type G-2 2 -1 1 EA $1,990.00 $3,980.00 $1,990.00 ·$1,990.00 
24 Concrete Inlets, Type CG-3 1 1 EA $2,200.00 $2,200.00 $2,200.00 $0.00 
2S Concrete Sanitary Sewer Manholes 2 2 EA $4,SOO.OO $9,000.00 $9,000.00 $0.00 
26 Level 4, % Inch ACP 110 8S 19S TON $160.00 $17,600.00 $31,200.00 $13,600.00 Change Order #1 
27 Asphalt Approach 1 1 EA $1,6SO.OO $ 1,6SO.OO $1,6SO.OO $0.00 
28 Concrele Curbs, Standard Curb 209 44 253 LF $2S.OO $S,22S.OO $6,32S.OO $1,100.00 
29 Concrete Driveways 61 6 1 SY $123.00 $7,S03.00 $7,S03.00 $0.00 
30 Concrete Walks 117 -7 110 SY $6S.OO $7,60S.OO $7,lSO.OO -$4SS.OO Change Order #1 
31 Extra for Truncated Dome 2 2 EA $1,SOO.OO $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 
32 Install Precast Decorative Sidewalk Panel 2 2 EA $21S.OO $430.00 $430.00 $0.00 
33 Remove Existing Signs 1 1 LS $82S.OO $82S.OO $82S.OO $0.00 
34 Perforated Steel Square Tube Sign Supports 1 1 LS $100.00 $200.00 $200.00 $0.00 
3S Type R Signs In Place 5 5 SF $16.00 $80.00 $80.00 $0.00 
;ie +)~ e Cb 6 GhaiA biAk FeA6e iltl Slats 3§ 3§ bF $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 Removed at Award of Contract 
~ ~O f"g g~ G h aiR blAk De~ble Gale { ilh S la ls~ ~ ~ €A $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 Removed at Award of Contract 
38 2 In ch Type K Copper Pipe with Class B Backfill 11 11 LF $SS.OO $60S.OO $60S.OO $0.00 
39 B Inch Ductile Iron Pipe with Class B Backfill 33 33 LF $88.00 $2,904.00 $2,904.00 $0.00 
40 10 Inch Ouclile Iron Pipe with Class B Backfill 60 -1 59 LF $S9.00 $3,S40.00 $3,481.00 -$S9.00 

41 
10 Inch Oucrne Iron Pipe with Restrained Joints & Class B 
Backfill 20S 0 20S LF $70.00 $14,3SO.OO $14,3SO.OO $0.00 

42 Ductile Iron Pipe Bend, 6 Inch 2 2 EA $260.00 $S20.00 $S20.00 $0.00 
43 Duclile Iron Pipe Bend, 8 Inch 2 2 EA $300.00 $600.00 $600.00 $0.00 
44 Ductile Iron Pipe Bend, 10 Inch 6 6 EA $SOO.OO $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 
4S Duclile Iron Pipe Tees, 10 Inch 2 2 EA $1,700.00 $3,400.00 $3,400.00 $0.00 
46 6 Inch Gate Valve 1 1 EA $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 
47 8 Inch Gale Valve 1 1 EA $1,SOO.OO $1,SOO.OO $1,SOO.OO $0.00 
48 10 Inch Gate Valve 2 2 EA $2,100.00 $4,200.00 $4,200.00 $0.00 
49 Hydran t Assemblies 1 1 EA $3,900.00 $3,900.00 $3,900.00 $0.00 
so 1 Inch Water Service Connection Piping 27 27 LF $SS.OO $1,48S.OO $1,48S.OO $0.00 
Sl 2 In ch Connection to 4 Inch Existing Main 2 2 EA $800.00 $1,600.00 $1,600.00 $0.00 
S2 3/4 Inch Water Meter Assembly 1 1 EA $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 
S3 Relocate 3/4 Inch Water Meter Assembly 1 1 EA $7SO.OO $7SO.OO $7SO.OO $0.00 
S4 Reconnecting Existing Water Services 2 2 EA $700.00 $ 1,400.00 $1,400.00 $0.00 
SS Extra Trench Excavation with Class B Backfill so 50 CY $4S.OO $2,2SO.OO $2,2SO.OO $0.00 
S6 Pole Foundations 2 2 EA $4,2SO.OO $8,SOO.OO $8,SOO.OO $0.00 
S7 Switching, Conduit, and \Mring 1 1 LS $9,26S.OO $9,26S.OO $9,26S.OO $0.00 

Franchise Improvements 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
S8 Schedule 40 PVC Conduit (Franch ise) 1 1 LS $11,990.00 $11,990.00 $11,990.00 $0.00 
S9 3 Fool X 5 Fool Enclosure (PG3660Z58409) 1 1 EA $S,99S.OO $S,99S.OO $S,99S.OO $0.00 
60 253TA Vault 1 1 EA $3,43S.OO $3,43S.OO $3,43S.OO $0.00 
61 11•x30~ Fiberlyte Box 1 1 EA $S7S.OO $57S.OO $S7S.OO $0.00 Check 

$304,883.00 $332,4S8.90 $27,S7S.90 $27,S7S.90 
Previously Approved by Council: $27,69S.OS 

KEY 
Items that changed quantity fn plan revision 

New unit prices requested by Greg Reid 
Items added or changed by Jesse Davies 



REPORT 

To: Mayor Russ and City Council 

From: Rob Daykin, City Administrator 

Date: January 25, 2016 

Re: City Charter Chapter XI Amendment 

Following review of the Urban Renewal Feasibility Study at the January 4 meeting, the Council 
expressed its interest in placing a measure amending Chapter XI Urban Renewal of the City Chatter 
before the voters at the May 17, 2016 special election. This action was precipitated by City Attorney 
Peter Watts's recommendation that ifthe Council wishes to form an urban renewal agency then the 
Charter should be amended first to remove ambiguities found in its various provisions. Also, Section 
58 appears to conflict with State law on how the distribution of taxes are determined for implementing 
tax increment financing of urban renewal indebtedness. 

I prepared two versions of an amendment to Chapter XI for the Council's consideration. The "long" 
version tries to maintain the structure of the existing chapter; but eliminates references to District (not 
used in State law) and aligns the duties of an Urban Renewal Agency and the plan preparation process 
with State law. State law provides for local discretion in the manner of mailing notice of the Council 
hearing on a proposed urban renewal plan to individuals or households as follows: 1) Owners of real 
prope11y in the City, or 2) Electors registered in the City, or 3) Utility customers in the City, or 4) 
Postal patrons in the City. In the long version I proposed using option 4 - see Section 56. (Note: This 
is a minimum requirement and the City could choose to use additional other means for mailing the 
required notice). Section 58 limits the maximum indebtedness1 (understood to be the maximum 
amount of taxes received by the Urban Renewal Agency for a plan that includes tax increment 
financing, i.e. the division of taxes provided under ORS 457.440) to 3% ofreal market value of the 
taxable property within the City. (Note: It is technically possible, although unlikely; to adopt an urban 
renewal plan that does not use tax increment financing) For example, the FY 2016-17 tax levy had an 
aggregate real market value of $342,570,566 in the City of Dundee, and the 3% limit would restrict the 
maximum amount of tax increment financing for an urban renewal plan without voter approval to 
about $10.3 million. Voter approval would be required to adopt a plan with an amount greater than the 
3% limit. 

The other limit I proposed in Section 58 is a ten year limit on the length of time for bonded debt. As 
the feasibility study illustrates, the amount of annual tax revenue received for an adopted plan will 
come in slowly in the early years and increases significantly in later years as prope11ies are developed 
to contribute additional assessed value. The Agency will set priorities on the improvements to be 
funded initially with some flexibility to leverage other resources, such as; private investment, City 

1 The September 2007 LOC Debt Issuance Manual defines debt as "An obligation resulting from the botrowing of money 
or from the purchase of goods and services." - (Emphasis added) 



street and utility funds, local improvement district prope1iy assessments, governmental grants, etc. 
From a pragmatic view, plan projects will likely be financed separately as oppmiunities arise. Also, 
unless backed by the full faith and credit of the City, borrowing monies that rely on tax increment 
revenue will be limited to commercial bank loans since underwriters of tax increment bonded debt will 
require a rating and bond insurance that the City of Dundee is unable to provide. Bank issued loans for 
these types of projects are typically five to seven years, with fewer lenders willing to provide loans out 
to ten years. 

The "shmi" version of amended chapter XI only provides for the limitations to the amount of 
indebtedness and length of time for bonded debt as described above, and repeals all other provisions 
(for example: urban renewal agency fo1mations, urban renewal plan preparation and adoption, division 
of taxes, urban renewal agency termination) since they are already covered under State law. Note: the 
ordinance adopting an urban renewal agency would determine the membership requirements of the 
agency. 

City Attorney Watts reviewed the two versions of the chaiier amendment and prepared sample 
resolutions and the Notice of Measure Election form for each. Staff is looking for preference from the 
Council on either the short or long version; and whether to include any additional changes. The intent 
is to bring the resolution with the prefeITed exhibit back to the February 16 Council meeting for 
approval. The last day to file the ballot measure for the May 17 special election is February 26. Once 
the ballot measure is filed, City resources may not be used to persuade voters on the measure. This 
restriction does not apply to the individual actions of the Mayor and Council. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - XX 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING REFERRAL TO THE ELECTORS OF THE CITY OF DUNDEE AT THE 
MAY 17, 2016 ELECTION, THE QUESTION OF WHETHER TO AMEND CHAPTER XI OF THE 

DUNDEE CHARTER RELATING TO URBAN RENEWAL 

WHEREAS, after due consideration, the Dundee City Council has decided to forward a proposed 
Charter Amendment to the voters. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF DUNDEE RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. Measure. A measure election is called in and forthe City of Dundee, Yamhill 
County, Oregon, for the purpose of submitting to the voters a measure amending Chapter XI of 
the Dundee Charter. A copy of the measure is attached and incorporated as "Exhibit 1." 

SECTION 2. Election Conducted by Mail. The measure election shall be held on Tuesday, May 
17, 2016, which is the next election. The precinct for the election shall be all of the territory 
within the corporate limits of the City of Dundee. As required by ORS 254.465, the measure 
election will be conducted by mail by the Yamhill County Elections Department, according to 
the procedures adopted by the Oregon Secretary of State. 

SECTION 3. Notice of Ballot Title. The City Elections Officer is directed to publish notice of 
receipt of the ballot title in compliance with ORS 250.275(5). 

SECTION 4. Ballot Title. Pursuant to ORS 250.285 and ORS 254.095, the Dundee City Council 
directs the City Elections Officer to file a notice of City Measure Election in substantially the 
form of Exhibit 2, with the Yamhill County Elections Office, unless, pursuant to a valid ballot title 
challenge, a judge at the Yamhill County Circuit Court certifies a different Notice of City 
Measure Election be filed, such filing shall occur no earlier than the eighth business day after 
the date on which Exhibit 2 is filed with the City Elections Officer and not later than March 17, 
2016. 

SECTION S. Explanatory Statement. Pursuant to ORS 251.345, the Dundee City Council directs 
the City Administrator to prepare a Measure Explanatory Statement for publication in the 
county voters' pamphlet; said statement shall be filed with the Yamhill County Elections Office 
at the same time the Notice of City Measure Election is filed by the City Elections Officer. 

SECTION 6. Delegation. The Dundee City Council authorizes the City Administrator or a 
designee of the City Administrator to act on behalf of the City of Dundee and to take such 
further action as is necessary to carry out the intent and purposes herein in compliance with 
the applicable provisions of law. 

Page 1- Resolution No. 2016 - _____ _ 50249-37340 2077941_1\DRF/l/22/2016 



SECTION 7. Effect of "Yes" Vote. If a majority of eligible voters vote "yes" on the measure, 
Chapter XI of the Charter will be amended, as set forth in Exhibit 1 of this Resolution. 

This resolution was PASSED and ADOPTED this __ day of ____ , 2016, and takes effect 
upon passage. 

DAVID RUSS, MAYOR 

ATIEST: 

ROB DAYKIN, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

Page 2 - Resolution No. 2016 - _____ _ 50249-37340 2077941_1 \DRF/1/22/2016 



Section 53 AUTHORIZATION. 

EXHIBIT 1 

CHAPTER XI 
URBAN RENEWAL 

-------------------··--· -----------------··-

The City Council is authorized to refer to the voters of Dundee the determination for the need for and 

activatgi<m ef-an Urban Renewal Distriot and Agency pursuant to the Oregon constitution and state law. The 

ordinance activating an Urban Renewal Agencyreferring suoh determination shall be without an emergency 

clause and may be referred to the voters. The 'Nord "need" means that the voters at a general eleotion must 

deolare that a blighted area(s) exist(s) whioh impairs the eoonomio values and tax revenues, and that the 

approved solution to a "need" is through an Urban Renewal Distriot and /\genoyCCovered under ORS 457.035 

Note: Article IX. Section 1 c provides authority for the redistribution of taxes to finance urban renewal projects). 

[Ord. 363 § 11(53), 1998). 

Section 54 URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY. 

The City Counoil shall by ordinanoe establish an Urban Renewal Agonoy after approval at a general election. 

The agenoy shall oonsist of suoh offioers as deemed neoessary by the Urban Renewal Distriot Board of 

Direotors. Upon creation of an Urban Renewal Agency. there is established an Urban Renewal Agency Board 

of Directors consisting of the City Council. The City Council may choose to appoint additional directors whose 

terms shall be no more than two years. The Urban Renewal Agency is authorized to develop an Urban 

Renewal Distriot pf:lan and accompanying report describing the adopted district projects to be undertaken. 

boundaries of the urban renewal areas, land uses proposedaotivities within, financing plan, §efleffil 

operationsreal property to be acquired; resouroesmaximum amount of indebtedness, annual reportsthe 

reasons for selection of each urban renewal area, and the expected impact of the planproposed results. The 

Urban Renewal Agency may plan or undertake any urban renewal project to carry out an approved Urban 

Renewal Plan. -[Ord. 363 § 11(54), 1998). 

Section 55 URBAN RENEWAL PLAN APPROVALDISTRICT BOUNDARIES. 

No Urban Renewal Plan shall be carried out unless approved by the City Council. Approval of an Urban 

Renewal Plan shall be by ordinance without an emergency clause and may be referred to the voters. The 

ordinance shall include a finding that adoption and carrying out of the urban renewal plan is economically 

sound and feasible. The Urban Renewal Distriot Boundaries shall be those lines drawn on a map and 

submitted to the voters as part of the Distriot and /\genoy formation. The Urban Renewal Distriot Board of 

Exhibit 1, Page 1 of 2 50249-37340 2077941_1\DRF/1!22/2016 



Directors may add no more than ten (10%) additional area to the District than initially approved by the voters. 

[Ord. 363 § 11(55), 1998]. 

The Urban Renewal Agency shall provide for public involvement in all stages in the development of an Urban 

Renewal Plan. Notice of a hearing by the City Council on a proposed Urban Renewal Plan shall be mailed to 

the postal patrons in the City.Upon creation of an Urban Renewal Agency, there is established an Urban 

Renewal District Soard of Directors consisting of the City Council. The City Council may choose to appoint five 

(5) additional directors whose terms shall be no more than two years. [Ord. 363 § 11(56), 1998]. 

Section 57 CONDEMNATION. --·--·-·-----.. -------· ........................ _ ·--·- -------- -----···'···---------- .. 

An Urban Renewal Gfstriet-.Agency may exercise the power of condemnation to acquire private property within 

the District in accordance with state laws. [Ord. 363 § 11(57), 1998]. 

Section 58 TAX INCREMENT FINANCING. 

The base assessed value and tax increment to each existing taxing district within the Distriot shall be 

determined immediately upon voter approval of the Distriot. No portion of this tax inorement shall be available 

to the Distriot. Property value added as a result of aotions by the Urban Renewal Distriot or through property 

value appreoiation shall be used as the basis for oaloulating the tax inorement available to the Distriot. If the 

Urban Renewal Gfstriet-.Plan includes tax incremental financing of Gfstriet-.indebtedness. the maximum amount 

of such indebtedness shall be no greater than 3% of the real market value of the taxable property within the 

.Ql!L, Ithe Urban Renewal Agency shall not issue bonded indebtedness with a maturity greater than ten years 

unless such bonded indebtedness is approved by the voters of the City. Soard of Direotors shall refer to the 

voters, at a regular eleotion, the question of authorizing such debt.For the purpose of this section. bonded 

indebtedness shall mean a formally executed written agreement representing a promise by a unit of 

government to pay to another a specified sum of money, at a specified date or dates at least one year in the 

future. [Ord. 363 § 11(58), 1998]. 

Section 59 TERMINATION OF AGENCY. 

If the Urban Renewal Distriot Soard of Directors City Council determines that there is no longer a need for an 

Urban Renewal Distriot and Agency, then the Gistriot-City Council by ordinance may terminate the Distriot and 

Agency. A Distriot shall terminate ten (10) years from the date of voter approval, or when all voter approved 

debt has been repaid through tax increment financing or other means. (Note: termination is covered under ORS 

457.75)[0rd. 363 § 11(59), 1998]. 

Exhibit 1, Page 2 of 2 50249~37340 2077941_1\DRF/1/22/2016 



Notice of Measure Election 
City 
Notice 
Date of Notice I Name of City or Cities 

City of Dundee 

EXHIBIT 2 

The following is the final ballot title of the measure to be submitted to the city's voters. 

SEL 802 
rev 1/14: ORS 250.035, 250.041, 

250.275, 250.285, 254.095, 254.465 

I Date of Election 
May 17, 2016 

Final Ballot Title Notice of receipt of ballot title has been published and the ballot title challenge process has been completed. 

Caption 10 words which reasonably identifies the subject of the measure 

CHARTER AMENDMENT TO CLARIFY URBAN RENEW AL PROVISIONS AND VOTING REQUIREMENTS 

Question 20 words which plainly phrases the chief purpose of the measure 

Should the Charter be amended to clarify urban renewal provisions, conform Charter with state law, and provide 
for voter referendum? 

Summary 175 words which concisely and impmiially summarizes the measure and its major effect 

In 1998, Dundee approved an urban renewal Charter Section ("Section"). State law changes have been adopted 
since the urban renewal Section of the Charter was passed, and ambiguities in the Section, need to be resolved in 
order to conform the Section to state law and clarify the voting rights of city electors. 

This measure, if approved, would resolve those ambiguities, conform the Section to state law, and clarify when 
and how an urban renewal plan could be voted on by city electors. 

Explanatory Statement 500 words that impmiially explains the measure and its effect, if required attach to this form 
If the county is producing a voters' pamphlet an explanatory statement must be submitted for any measure referred by the city 
governing body and ifrequired by local ordinance, for any initiative or referendum. 
Measure Type j County producing voters' pamphlet j Local ordinance requiring submission j Explanatory statement required 
l:8J Referral l:8J Yes D No Not applicable l:8J Yes D No 
D Initiative D Yes D No l:8J Yes D No 0Yes 0No 
D Referendum D Yes D No D Yes D No 0Yes 0No 

Authorized City Official Not required to be notarized 

-7 By signing this document, I hereby state that I am authorized by the city to submit this Notice of Measure Election and I certify that 
notice of receipt of ballot title has been published and the ballot title challenge process for this measure completed. 

I Name I Title I WorkPhone 

Signature Date Signed 

Exhibit 2 50249·37340 2077941_1\DRF/1/22/2016 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016 - XX 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING REFERRAL TO THE ELECTORS OF THE CITY OF DUNDEE AT THE 
MAY 17, 2016 ELECTION, THE QUESTION OF WHETHER TO AMEND CHAPTER XI OF THE 

DUNDEE CHARTER RELATING TO URBAN RENEWAL 

WHEREAS, after due consideration, the Dundee City Council has decided to forward a proposed 
Charter Amendment to the voters. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF DUNDEE RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. Measure. A measure election is called in and for the City of Dundee, Yamhill 
County, Oregon, for the purpose of submitting to the voters a measure amending Chapter XI of 
the Dundee Charter. A copy of the measure is attached and incorporated as "Exhibit 1." 

SECTION 2. Election Conducted by Mail. The measure election shall be held on Tuesday, May 
17, 2016, which is the next election. The precinct for the election shall be all of the territory 
within the corporate limits of the City of Dundee. As required by ORS 254.465, the measure 
election will be conducted by mail by the Yamhill County Elections Department, according to 
the procedures adopted by the Oregon Secretary of State. 

SECTION 3. Notice of Ballot Title. The City Elections Officer is directed to publish notice of 
receipt of the ballot title in compliance with ORS 250.275(5). 

SECTION 4. Ballot Title. Pursuant to ORS 250.285 and ORS 254.095, the Dundee City Council 
directs the City Elections Officer to file a notice of City Measure Election in substantially the 
form of Exhibit 2, with the Yamhill County Elections Office, unless, pursuant to a valid ballot title 
challenge, a judge at the Yamhill County Circuit Court certifies a different Notice of City 
Measure Election be filed, such filing shall occur no earlier than the eighth business day after 
the date on which Exhibit 2 is filed with the City Elections Officer and not later than March 17, 
2016. 

SECTION 5. Explanatory Statement. Pursuant to ORS 251.345, the Dundee City Council directs 
the City Administrator to prepare a Measure Explanatory Statement for publication in the 
county voters' pamphlet; said statement shall be filed with the Yamhill County Elections Office 
at the same time the Notice of City Measure Election is filed by the City Elections Officer. 

SECTION 6. Delegation. The Dundee City Council authorizes the City Administrator or a 
designee of the City Administrator to act on behalf of the City of Dundee and to take such 
further action as is necessary to carry out the intent and purposes herein in compliance with 
the applicable provisions of law. 

Page 1 - Resolution No. 2016 - _____ _ 50249~37340 2080099_1\DRF/1/22/2016 



SECTION 7. Effect of "Yes" Vote. If a majority of eligible voters vote "yes,, on the measure, 
Chapter XI of the Charter will be amended, as set forth in Exhibit 1 of this Resolution. 

This resolution was PASSED and ADOPTED this ___ day of ____ , 2016, and takes effect 
upon passage. 

DAVID RUSS, MAYOR 

ATIEST: 

ROB DAYKIN, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

Page 2 - Resolution No. 2016 - _____ _ 50249-37340 2080099_1 \DRF/1122/2016 



EXHIBIT 1 

CHAPTER XI 
URBAN RENEWAL 

If an adopted urban renewal plan includes tax incremental financing of indebtedness. the maximum amount of 

such indebtedness shall be no greater than 3% of the real marked value of taxable properties in the City. The 

Urban Renewal Agency of the City shall not issue bonded indebtedness with a maturity greater than ten years 

unless such bonded indebtedness is approved by the voters of the City. For the purpose of this section. bonded 

indebtedness shall mean a formally executed written agreement representing a promise by a unit of 

government to pay to another a specified sum of money. at a specified date or dates at least one year in the 

future. The City Counoil is authorized to refur to the voters of Dundee the determination for the need for and 

aotivation of an Urban Renmval Distriot and Agency. The ordinanoe refurring suoh determination shall be 

without an emergenoy olause. The word "need" means that the voters at a general eleotion must deolare that a 

blighted area(s) exist(s) whioh impairs the eoonomio values and tax revenues, and that the approved solution to 

a "need" is through an Urban Renewal Distriot and Agenoy. [Ord. 363 § 11(53), 1998]. 

The City Counoil shall by ordinanoe establish an Urban Renewal /\genoy after approval at a general eleotion. 

The agenoy shall oonsist of such offioers as deemed neoessary by the Urban Renmval District Board of 

Direotors. The Agenoy is authorized to develop an Urban Renewal Distriot plan desoribing the adopted district 

boundaries, activities within, financing plan, general operations, resouroes, annual reports, and proposed 

results. [Ord. 363 § 11(54), 1998]. 

The Urban Renewal Distriot Boundaries shall be those lines drawn on a map and submitted to the voters as 

part of the Distriot and /\genoy formation. The Urban Renewal Distriot Board of Direotors may add no more than 

ten (10%) additional area to the Distriot than initially approved by the voters. [Ord. 363 § 11(55), 1998]. 

Section 56 URBAN RENE'J'lAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS.(Repealed) 

Exhibit 1, Page 1 of 2 50249-37340 2080099_1\DRF/1/22/2016 



Upon creation of an Urban Renewal Agency, there is established an Urban Renewal District Board of Directors 

consisting of the City Council. The City Council may choose to appoint five (5) additional directors whose terms 

shall be no more than two years. [Ord. 363 § 11(56), 1998]. 

An Urban Renewal District may exercise the power of condemnation to acquire private property within the 

District in accordance with state laws. [Ord. 363 § 11(57), 1998]. 

~ectie>n 68TA.>< lf\J_CREPJ1f2NT FINANCING~ (Repealed) m 

The base assessed value and tmc increment to each existing tmcing district within the District shall be 

determined immediately upon voter approval of the District. ~Jo portion of this tax increment shall be available 

to the District. Property value added as a result of actions by the Urban Renewal District or through property 

value appreciation shall be used as the basis for calculating the tax increment available to the District. If the 

Urban Renewal District Plan includes tax incremental finaneing of District indebtedness, the Board of Directors 

shall refer to the voters, at a regular election, t.he question of authorizing such debt. [Ord. 363 § 11(58), 1998]. 

If the Urban Renewal District Board of Directors determines that there is no longer a need for an Urban 

Renewal District and Agency, then the District by ordinance may terminate the District and /\gency. A District 

shall terminate ten (10) years from the date of voter approval, or when all voter approved debt has been repaid 

through tax increment financing or other means. [Ord. 363 § 11(59), 1998]. 

Exhibit 1, Page 2 of 2 50249-37340 2080099_1\DRF/1/22/2016 



Notice of Measure Election 
City 
Notice 
Date of Notice I Name of City or Cities 

City of Dundee 

EXHIBIT 2 

The following is the final ballot title of the measure to be submitted to the city's voters. 

SEL 802 
rev 1/14: ORS 250.035, 250.041, 

250.275, 250.285, 254.095, 254.465 

I Date of Election 
May 17, 2016 

Final Ballot Title Notice of receipt of ballot title has been published and the ballot title challenge process has been completed. 
Caption I 0 words which reasonably identifies the subject of the measure 

AMEND CHAPTER XI OF DUNDEE CHARTER RELATING TO URBAN RENEW AL 

Question 20 words which plainly phrases the chief purpose of the measure 

Should the Charter be amended to repeal certain provisions and cap maximum urban renewal indebtedness at 
three percent? 

Summary 175 words which concisely and impartially summarizes the measure and iis major effect 

In 1998, Dundee voters approved the Urban Renewal Chapter of the Charter ("Chapter"). State law changes 
adopted after the Chapter was adopted, and ambiguities in the Chapter, need to be resolved, in order to conform 
the Chapter to state law. 

This measure, if approved, would repeal the. current Chapter and adopt a section that would limit the maximum 
urban renewal indebtedness to no greater than three percent of the total market value of taxable properties in the 
city. It would also cap total urban renewal bonding and require voter approval for any bonds with a maturity date 
greater than ten years. The City would follow state law requirements for all other urban renewal matters. 

Explanatory Statement 500 words that impartially explains the measure and its effect, ifrequired attach to this form 
If the county is producing a voters' pamphlet an explanatory statement must be submitted for any measure referred by the city 
governing body and if required by local ordinance, for any initiative or referendum. 
Measure Type I County producing voters' pamphlet I Local ordinance requiring submission I Explanatory statement required 
[8J Referral [8J Yes D No Not applicable [8J Yes D No 
D Initiative D Yes D No [8J Yes D No 0Yes 0No 
D Referendum D Yes D No D Yes D No 0Yes 0No 

Authorized City Official Not required to be notarized 
~By signing this document, I hereby state that I am authorized by the city to submit this Notice of Measure Election and I certify that 

notice of receipt of ballot title has been published and the ballot title challenge process for this measure completed. 

I Name I Title I Work Phone 

Signature Date Signed 

Exhibit 2 50249-37340 2080099_1 \DRF/1/22/2016 



REPORT 

To: Mayor Russ and City Council 

From: Rob Daykin, City Administrator 

Date: January 27, 2016 

Re: 2016 Council Goals 

Attached is the draft of the 2016 goals prepared by Nancy Boyer using her notes from the January 19 
workshop meeting. Please review and confom whether they accurately reflect the consensus of the 
Council. Also, Objective 1 under Goal 1 - Secure funding to implement a free-flowing traffic pattern 
at the south Dundee bypass connection - does not have a priority assigned. We request the Council 
assign a priority rating at the February 2 meeting. 

Nancy stated it would be helpful to have input from the Council on the relative importance of the 
objectives. Per her suggestion, please note your top four- these could include any priority level (1-4), 
and be prepared to share them at the meeting. Following discussion and consensus of the top four 
objectives, I will note them with a footnote on final version of the 2016 Goals and Objectives. 



DRAFT 

GOAL-SETTING WORI<SHOP 
RESULTS 

January 19, 2016 

MISSION STATEMENT 

The City of Dundee provides public services ""hi~h support and improve the 
livability, safety and economic vitality of the commun,ity. 

GOALS 

The City of Dundee will: 

1. Provide municipal facilities a11Cl infrastructure to support CUlTent operations and 
growth focusing on responsiblefunding, inhoyation and value to the community. 

. . . ~ 

2. Provide p1:operplalliling; zoning and codks\o manag~.growth in the City while 
improving overall livability, enhanCing historical qualities and maintaining 
Dundee's unique 9haractd:. . · 
'-. ' ·, 

Develop and managy an integratei:l system of parks, paths and open spaces to 
enhance livability, utilize.11atural assets and provide recreational opp01iunities. 

4. Ep.c;qurage a positive and vial:>ieeconomic environment and instill pride of 
own~rship and sense of collllliunity shared by businesses and residents. 

5. Provide efficient, effective and open government to best serve the community, 
increase civicinvolveilient and supp01i public safety. 



DRAFT 

OBJECTIVES 

Goal #1 - Provide municipal facilities and infrastructure to support current 
operations and growth focusing on responsible funding, innovation and value to the 
community 

OBJECTIVE PRIORITY 

1 Secure funding to implement a free-flowing tr.a.ffic pattern at 
the south Dundee bypass connection (FTF), •. · 

2 Establish SDC rates that ensure future devefopment 1 
contributes fairly to the City's infrastructi.ire: 

3 Evaluate need to update Wastewater Master Plan 1 
4 I & I reduction ... / 1 
5 Evaluate financial alternatives for.wastewater treatment .. 1 

improvements and current loans. ·. 

6 Effect repairs as needed to the Fiie Hall ..... .· 2 
7 Involve the public in a. discussion of potential use of recycled ·. 2 

water for iITigation and oth(fr non-potabk purposes. 
8 Complete planned streetscape · .... · . 2 
9 Update St01m Water Master Plan, ·.··. 

. ·.> 2 
10 Evaluate fimmcial options for storm waterimprovelnents. 2 
11 Fund 25% Of the projects iri the Transportation System Plan 3 

\ - - - - . - ·-
(TSP).·.· . . ·. 

12 Pave allstreets (no gravel roads), · 3 
13 New City Hall. . --.; _ . ... 3 
14 . Explore and evafoate opti<Yris for pedestrian safety on and in 3 ·. 

crossingHwy. 99W. . ' 

1 .. .. 15 Continue iillplementation of street maintenance plan. 4 
16 Manage water rates that implement the Water Master Plan and 4 

·. support cunehtoperations .•• 
17 Continue to support the Newberg-Dundee bypass. 4 
18 Prortiqte water eonservation in the City. 4 
19 Encourage rec:luction of traffic on 99W by evaluating 4 

alternativerqutes and methods in conjunction with ODOT and 
Yamhill County, including participation in planning efforts. 

Goal #2 - Provide proper planning, zoning and codes to manage growth in the City 
while improving overall livability, enhancing historical qualities and maintaining 
Dundee's unique character. 

OBJECTIVE PRIORITY 

1 Implement yearly spring clean-up event. 1 
2 Update development codes, focusing on park land dedication 1 

and on-site storm water management for new developments. 



DRAFT 
3 Complete Riverside Zone changes and Design Standards. 
4 Update City Charter to facilitate urban renewal. 
5 Develop public parking plan. 
6 Integrate unique identity elements within Improvement Design 

Standards. 
7 Develop plan for Dundee Visitor Information Center with 

public restrooms. 
8 Council to meet jointly with Planning Commission as needed 

to outline and coordinate activities, objectives and priorities. 
9 Encourage and provide Planning Commissioners with training. 

10 Improve the visual appearance of downtownthrough 
education, code enforcement and publicp1·ope1iy 
beautification and maintenance. . . 

.· . 

Goal #3 - Develop and manage an integrated system of parks, paths .and open 
spaces to enhance livability, utilize naturalasse(s an~ pr~vide recreational 
opportunities. . · 

.. . .. .. 

1 
1 
2 
2 

3 

4 

4 
4 

OBJECTIVE / PRIORITY 
·,·-·--

1 Initiate civic core visionirigprocess to ~~~µre pen11apence of 1 
Dundee;. Billick Park. : • •· 

2 Ensure the development of cel1th:Illy focateclneighborhood and 2 '.' ', .. - __ ,_._ 

community parks qsidentified in:the Riverside Master Plan. 
3 Conve1i exi~tingwastewater treatn;ient facility lands for park, 3 

paths and open.space use. ·.·.··. . .... ·••·· 
I/ 
I 4 Interconnect Harvey Creek, Harvey Cfoek Springs and 3 
.... Viewmcmtproperties via trails. · 

5 Improve non-:ll1Ptorizeci c:onnectivity between the hills, the 3 
river and neighb()ring ~ol1u1:mnities through coordinated trail 
system. . .· 

6 Pursue potentiaLpurchase of 20 acres adjacent to Harvey 3 - - . ' 

CreekTr.ail prqperty for expansion of trail system. 
Promote wildlife and wetland habitat at former wastewater 4 
treatment lagoons. 

7 Continue to implement the Parks and Open Space Plan 4 
8 Maintain effective communication with Chehalem Park and 4 

Recreation District by quarterly up-dates from CPRD and 
attendance of City representative at key CPRD Board 
meetings. 



DRAFT 
Goal #4 - Encourage a positive and viable economic environment and instill pride of 
ownership and sense of community shared by businesses and residents. 

OBJECTIVE PRIORITY 

1 Implement fa9ade improvement program. 1 
2 Develop and implement a request for customer feedback for 1 

City services related to development/redevelopment with 
objective to improve City services. 

3 Construct Welcome to Dundee sign for the south end of the 2 
City. .· . 

4 Underground utilities on 99W. ·. ··/ 3 
5 Encourage development/re-development of downtown 4 

businesses. / 

6 Supp01i community events and projects and utilize Chamber of 4 
Commerce to foster a relationship with businesses tcr.maintain 
and improve prope1iies. ; .· ·. 

7 Feature yard maintenance/innovations/ backyard activitiesi11 4 
City newsletter. .· .. 

:· 

Goal #5 - Provide efficient, effectiye and open gove:rnfuent to best serve the 
community, increase civic involvement, and supporfpu)Jlic safety. 

; ·; .· ·.· · . 

OBJECTIVE; ••. 
. ·. PRIORITY · .. · .. 

I Upgrade and eOhance the Cify' s w,ebsite. . < .. 
.· 

1 
2 Explore other effe9tive medilrnis•:for communication with the I 

community. .. .' :::., 

3 . pevelop ·refo1ple <ioouni.entation fo(public works activities, 1 
. ·· .... induding additiom1l administrative staff and resources . 

4 Install radar read& board on 1st Sti:eet, 9111 Street and by the 1 
; Elementa1'y School: . 

Assist Fire Chief in thetecruitment and retention of volunteer 1 
; 

. fire personnel. ••. · 
6 Update employee handbook. 2 
7 Continue comni.lJ.nication with Yamhill County and City of 4 

Newberg by ep'C:o\iraging attendance of City elected officials 
and staffat releyant meetings and participation on relevant 
studies, task.forces and committees. 

8 Publicly recognize community volunteers 4 
9 Supp01i effo1is of Newberg/Dundee Police community 4 

outreach, including National Night Out and Citizen Academy. 
10 Provide a positive work environment for City staff and 4 

elected/appointed officials which includes continuing 
education and professional development opp01iunities. 

11 Continue staff appreciation day at end of year. 4 
12 Continue quarterly newsletter. 4 
13 Ensure an ethic of customer service for City govermnent. 4 



DRAFT 

KEY TO PRIORITY RATINGS 
• 1 - Do now - budget in the fo1ih-corning budget year 
• 2 - Look at accomplishing 2-3 years in the future 
• 3 - Nice to have - not to look at funding for at least 3 - 5 years in the future 
• 4 - Routine - on-going from year to year 



REPORT 

To: Mayor Russ and City Council 

From: Rob Daykin, City Administrator 

Date: January 26, 2016 

Re: License to Use lih Street Right of Way (ROW) 

Purple Hands Winery received conditional approval of their development permit pending resolution of 
their use of the lih Street ROW for a portion of their storm water treatment facility located in the 
northeast part of their prope1iy at 1200 N. Highway 99W. Since the rain garden is a constructed 
facility required for the exclusive use of the development, a license is needed for its placement in the 
right of way. The license will set the terms for the use of the right of way, including issues of 
construction, maintenance, compensation, indemnification and abandonment. We had a similar license 
approved for use of lih Street ROW located on the east side of the railroad for the installation and use 
of two private underground pipes for the lih & Maple Wine Company. In that license agreement the 
owner paid $1,500 up front to cover the cost of preparing the license agreement and an annual fee of 
$120. 

The lih Street stub next to the Purple Hands Winery property is only 80 feet in length and is not 
planned to be constructed as a through street in the future. Additionally, per the direction of the City 
Council the sidewalk/streetscape project improvements to the l21

h Street intersection at Highway 99W 
are to be designed as a commercial driveway and not a local street. I discussed the cost to prepare the 
license agreement with City Attorney Rihala and she estimated about three to four hours. In exchange 
for the use of the right of way by Purple Hands, staff requested expansion to the existing 10 foot wide 
sewer easement near the sewer manhole located in the lih Street ROW. This additional easement area 
will make it easier to affect repairs to the manhole and other maintenance activities. Staff supports the 
request by Purple Hands Winery and I recommend compensation set at an initial payment of $1,000 to 
cover preparation of the license agreement and to accept the additional 50 square feet for the sewer 
easement in lieu of an annual payment for the license agreement. Cody Wright plans on attending the 
February 2 meeting to answer questions from the Council regarding his request. 

Recommendation: Motion to accept the request from Purple Hands Winery for the use of235 square 
feet of lih Street for their rain garden and authorize the city administrator to execute a license 
agreement with Purple Hands Winery prepared by the city attorney with compensation set as 
recommended by the city administrator. 



Purple Hands Winel'y 
POBox820 
Dundee Or, 97115 
541 501 2459 

Dear Dundee City Council, 

We are Purple Hands Winery and are excited to be a part of the evolving industry 
that is Dundee. My wife, son and I have lived here in Dundee for the last 4 years. We 
look forward to our business contributing to the community, family owned 
businesses, economy, tourism, and Job market of Dundee and our local area. 

Thank you for the opportunity to discuss our use of 235sqft of 12th st. for a rain 
garden on a small part of stubbed 12th st. in the driveway to our property. We will 
be repaving and grading the entire 12th st. to have all water from 12th st. drained and 
detained into this rain garden. 

In a gesture of good faith for you letting us use this square footage we are extending 
the city's easement on our property to give you SOsqft more for working use in one 
city manhole that is butted up to our property. 

Thank you for your consideration, 

All the best, 

Cody & Marque Wright 

Purple Hands Winery 



II 
r· 
0 
n 
~ r , 
0 .s 
~ 

~ 
:'> 

w 
} 
s 
~ -

~ 
( 

rn 
S§ x 

:::J 
)SF.' r':': 0-
~q ;:::;: 

)> 

11 II 

~ rn 
x a.. --

if= [_}!:+: s-
L. (!', 

("v 

ft" f: 
~ t.. 

~ 11\ 
W> 

;... 
k 

"" 1 ! ('\:) 

!"'\> ~ 
~ 

~ 
~ z 
G\ 

"' c 
5 z 
G\ 

" "' 'il 
0 
~ 

" . ' "' c 
5 z 
G\ 

~I 
~· :;/I 

~I 
I 
I 

I 

/ \fj"j i 
( II M I 

I " I I \ 11- -1- -- -- ---,' \ I: s---s
1

--J--
\ I o---o,--

-;,,-__J_T __ / __ _ 

"/ i 

~ : 

) : 
" I 

I l 

I • I 
I 
I 

".: t" i 

~~..:'1'2---- - j_I __ _ 

(i 

- o - - -a ---a --- a - - - a --- o --- a --- a furn E ~ro~ivrw ... v a --- a ---a -
HIGHWAY99 

M 

I 
M 

-<---<---s---s---s---s---s---s~s---s---s---
~~~~ RAIN GARDEN IN 12TH STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY 

-~~- SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT WIDENING 
c~; 

z~ ~ .. f? 

PURPLE HANDS WINERY s•n 
~ § 

DUHDEE.O.UGOll 

Pk£PA.'l.EO&Y~ I AllDRID<iE DlS!Gll, ~IC.. 



REPORT 

To: Mayor Russ and City Council 

From: Rob Daykin, City Administrator 

Date: January 28, 2016 

Re: Locust Street Water Line Replacement Proposal 

Del Boca Vista, LLC plans on constructing six single family homes on the east side of Locust Street 
between i 11 and 8111 Street. The existing 4" steel water line in the same block was proposed to be 
replaced and upgraded to an 8" ductile iron water line in the draft Water Master Plan. Due to recent 
multiple repairs on this line, City crews were planning on abandoning this section of the line and 
upgrading the remainder of the 4 inch line from 8111 Street to 10111 Street as a project in early fall of this 
year. However, abandonment of the line was curtailed after the City was approached late last fall 
regarding plans to develop six new homes on the property. Del Boca Vista proposes to replace the 
water line along with their requirement to extend the sewer main in that same block, and request 
reimbursement from the City for that work - see attached email from the project engineer. The 
estimated cost is $37,500, although it is my understanding that the developer will try to get more 
accurate pricing prior to the February 2 meeting. Staff feels this is a good opportunity to replace a 
failing line at a reasonable cost. 

Recommendation: Motion to authorize the city administrator to enter into an agreement to reimburse 
Del Boca Vista for the construction of an 8" ductile water line located in Locust Street in an amount 
not to exceed $ -------



Rob Daykin 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Mr. Daykin, 

dan@dbvcorp.com 
Thursday, January 28, 2016 3:24 PM 
Rob Daykin 
City Engineer 
Water Line Development Proposal 
Dundee water line proposal.pdf 

Del Bova Vista is in the process of developing the lots along the easterly side of SE Locust St. between 7th and 
8th Streets. 

It is our understanding that while the existing water line has capacity to serve the new lots, the city would like to 
replace this line due to its age and size. I believe there is an oppmiunity for the city and developer to work 
together. 

As our project will include the extension of the sanity sewer line, including the replacement waterline makes 
sense. We both benefit replacing the water line now rather than after the homes have been constructed resulting 
in increased costs and potentially angry residents. 

Our proposal is to install the new water line with the city reimbursing us for the design and construction 
costs. For planning purposes, we estimate the cost to be $37,500. The unknown factor is the effort needed to 
connect to the existing valves at either end of the project. The final reimbursement amount will be for actual 
cost as approved by the City Engineer and City Manager. 

I have attached a draft drawing to show where the new waterline would be located as well as the anticipated 
sanitary sewer line improvement. 

I look forward to discussing this opportunity with you in greater detail. 

Daniel Danicic, PE 
Del Boca Vista, LLC 

1 



~ ! 
' 

Cf) 

SE ?TH 

SE 8TH 



REPORT 

To: Mayor Russ and City Council 

From: Rob Daykin, City Administrator 

Date: January 25, 2016 

Re: Legal Services Agreement 

In 2009, City Attorney Andy Jordan proposed a special rate of $250 per meeting plus mileage expense 
for attendance at Council meetings. Previously, the hourly rate was applied to both the attendance and 
travel time. The special rate was proposed since the City Attorney was not requested to attend 
meetings on a regular basis out of concern with the cost. Mr. Jordan noted that a benefit to regular 
attendance at the meetings is it will allow the legal team to gain background infmmation and have a 
better understanding of the issues from the Council's perspective in order to provide accurate and 
timely service. This special rate has not changed since it was first implemented in 2009. The last 
increase in the hourly rate (from $180 to $200) took effect July 1, 2010. 

City Attorney Rihala informed me that the special rate has not covered the cost of attendance at the 
Council meetings in recent years, but indicated the hourly rate is still appropriate for other legal 
services. Jordan Ramis PC proposed an increase to the council meeting attendance rate over the next 
two fiscal years to bring it in line with other clients and minimize the budget impact with the phased 
approach. Under this proposal effective July 1, 2016, the meeting attendance rate will increase to $350 
and effective July 1, 2017, the meeting attendance rate will increase to $400. The flat rate for 
attendance of meetings has worked well for the City, enabling more consistent attendance and perhaps 
elevating the City Attorney's relationship with the Council. 

Recommendation: Motion to accept the changes to the council meeting attendance rate as proposed 
by Jordan Ramis PC, and authorize the city administrator to sign the rate amendment to the legal 
services agreement. 



January 13, 2016 

Rob Daykin 
City Administrator 
City of Dundee 
PO Box 220 
Dundee OR 97115 

Lake Oswego 
Two Centerpointe Dr., 6th Floor 
Lake Oswego, OR 97035 
503-598-7070 
www.jordanramis.com 

Re: Legal Services Rates 
General 
Our File No. 50249-37340 

Dear Rob: 

Vancouver 
1499 SE Tech Center Pl., #380 
Vancouver, WA 98683 
360-567 -3900 

Bend 
360 SW Bond St., Suite 510 
Bend, OR 97702 
541-550-7900 

As we recently discussed, pursuant to our Legal Services Agreement, for the last several years, we have 
provided legal services at the rate of $200/hour for attorney time, with a discounted flat-fee charge of 
$250 for attorney coverage at City Council meetings. We have provided this special Council meeting 
rate based on a long-standing recognition that being present at Council meetings allows us to provide 
better legal services to the City, and allows the staff and Council to have greater access to the city 
attorney, in a way that might be difficult otherwise. 

It is now necessary to increase our rates, to account for our increases in costs over the years and to 
bring our rates into line with other firms providing municipal legal services. Most of our cities pay our 
full .hourly rate for attorney coverage at Council meetings, and of the cities that pay special, flat-fees for 
Council meetings, all are at $500 per meeting or more. 

Instead of raising the City's rates by a significant amount at one time, we propose that our rates be 
increased annually over the next two years, to bring them in line gradually with market rates for similar 
services, and to allow the City to plan for such increases in its budget. Given that the average Dundee 
Council meeting is over four hours, including travel time, this will still provide the City with a significant 
savings on the cost for attorney attendance at Council meetings. Additionally, to allow the City to plan 
for increases in its budget, we are not going to raise our hourly rates this year. 

The rates we propose would be as follows: 

July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017 - $350 per Council meeting. 

July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018 - $400 per Council meeting. 

50249-37340 2061442_1\DRF/l/14/2016 



JORDAN RAMIS PC 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

Rob Daykin 
January 13, 2016 
Page2 

Please let us know if you find this proposal acceptable, and we will prepare an amendment to our Legal 
Services Agreement. Please feel free to give me a call, if you would like to discuss this further. 

Sincerely, 

JORDAN RAMIS PC 

~~ 
Admitted in Oregon 
tim.ramis@jordanramis.com 
OR Direct Dial (503) 598-5573 

~/!---
Shelby L. Rihala 
Admitted in Oregon 
shelby.rihala@jordanramis.com 
OR Direct Dial (503) 598-5549 

50249-37340 2061442_1 \DRF/1/13/2016 



REPORT 

To: Mayor Russ and City Council 

From: Rob Daykin, City Administrator 

Date: February 27, 2015 

Re: Bond Refunding Analysis 

During review of the 2016 goals and objectives at the January 19 meeting, the Council expressed 
interest in exploring the possibility of refunding existing debt with the idea of using the savings to 
fund additional sewer system improvements for reducing I & I and the installation of additional MBR 
panels for increasing WWTP treatment capacity during high flows. It was noted that the City of 
Newberg refunded debt last year and realized a substantial savings and that bonded debt interest rates 
have declined since that deal was completed- see attached Oregon Bond Index table. In the Newberg 
bond sale, six bonds with a range of interest rates and maturities were refunded resulting in an 
accumulated savings of $1,088,432 realized through reduced future debt service and earlier maturity 
of the debt. Attached is a recap of the Newberg bond sale showing the details of the bonds refunded, 
the debt service for the new bond, and a comparison of its debt service with the refunded bonds. The 
Newberg bond sale was negotiated with Wedbush Securities Inc., but an independent financial advisor 
representing Newberg was not employed. 

Several issues about Newberg's situation that are different from ours: 1) the bonds refunded had 
higher interest rates than Dundee's; 2) the maturities of the bonds refunded were considerably less 
than Dundee's; and 3) Newberg increased its bond credit rating to AA (Standard & Poor's) and 
Dundee is umated. Newberg was able to get a more favorable interest savings since the maturity of 
the refunding bonds is about 10.5 years. Presumably, this would not be available to Dundee if we are 
unwilling to substantially increase customer rates to accommodate increased principal payments 
associated with a ten year bond rate. The following is a summary of the Dundee sewer and water 
loans: 

State Loan Program 

DEQ Clean Water State Revolving Fund 
IF A Water/Wastewater Program 

Loan Balance 

$8,716,409 
$716,953 

Int. Rate 

3.15%* 
4.04% 

Maturity Date 

11/01/32 
12/01/32 

*Includes .5% Annual Fee (was reduced to .25% in the first two years) 

I discussed the possibility of refunding the Dundee loans with Pat Clancy of Western Financial Group. 
Pat is the financial advisor that assisted in our obtaining construction financing for the WWTP 
improvements project and the new fire station. Pat pointed out that the state loans will be hard to beat 
even in today's market given the lack of bond credit rating and the infrequency of bond issues by the 
City. A more formal recommendation would require some analysis, estimated at $750 to $1,000. 

Does the Council wish to proceed with the preparation of an analysis of the refunding possibility by 
the financial advisor? 



OREGON BOND INDEX* 
Oregon State of Oregon 
A Rated (Aal/AA+/AA+) 

DATE lOYR 20YR lOYR 20YR 
08-06-15 2.84 3.67 2.43 3.21 
08-13-15 2.70 3.56 2.35 3.14 
08-20-15 2.68 3.52 2.35 3.10 
08-27-15 2.66 3.37 2.32 3.10 
09-03-15 2.71 3.59 2.37 3.21 
09-10-15 2.75 3.67 2.39 3.25 
09-17-15 2.79 3.71 2.41 3.27 
09-24-15 2.61 3.53 2.28 3.09 
10-01-15 2.57 3.36 2.26 2.99 
10-08-15 2.62 3.37 2.26 2.97 
10-15-15 2.55 3.50 2.20 3.09 
10-22-15 2.59 3.33 2.22 2.91 
10-29-15 2.54 3.49 2.20 3.09 
11-05-15 2.63 3.48 2.24 2.85 
11-12-15 2.76 3.45 2.36 3.30 
11-19-15 2.64 3.44 2.28 3.02 
11-27-15 2.53 3.38 2.19 2.96 
12-03-15 2.45 3.25 2.11 2.86 
12-10-15 2.46 3.22 2.10 2.81 
12-17-15 2.45 3.19 2.13 2.95 
12-24-15 2.35 3.07 2.14 2.77 
12-31-15 2.30 3.00 2.03 2.65 
01-07-16 2.25 3.02 1.90 2.62 
01-14-16 2.40 3.08 2.08 2.67 
01-21-16 2.17 2.98 1.85 2.60 

BOND BUYER INDEX** 

11 Bond Index 
3.27 
3.21 
3.25 
3.31 
3.34 
3.34 
3.30 
3.23 
3.19 
3.19 
3.19 
3.18 
3.18 
3.20 
3.26 
3.16 
3.14 
3.08 
3.08 
3.08 
3.08 
3.08 
2.96 
2.96 
2.88 

20 Bond Index 
3.75 
3.69 
3.73 
3.79 
3.82 
3.82 
3.78 
3.71 
3.67 
3.68 
3.68 
3.67 
3.66 
3.69 
3.74 
3.65 
3.63 
3.57 
3.57 
3.57 
3.57 
3.57 
3.45 
3.45 
3.37 

* The Oregon Bond Index 20 year represents an average rate on 20-year maturities of Oregon municipal general 
obligation bonds rated "A", as reported to the Debt Management Division of the Oregon Treasurer's Office by 
regional/northwest traders of Oregon bonds. 

**General obligation bonds maturing in 20 years are used in compiling these indexes. The 20-bond index has an 
average rating equivalent to Moody's Aa2 and S&P's AA, while the 11-bond index is equivalent to Aal and AA+. 



$11,105,000 
City of Newberg, Yamhill County, Oregon 
Full Faith & Credit Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 

Pricing Summary 

Maturity Type of Bond Coupon Yield 
12/01/2015 Serial Coupon 2.500% 0.440% 
12/01/2016 Serial Coupon 2.500% 0.650% 
12/01/2017 Serial Coupon 2.500% 1.120% 
12/01/2018 Serial Coupon 2.500% 1.430% 
12/01/2019 Serial Coupon 2.500% 1.650% 
12/01/2020 Serial Coupon 4.000% 1.930% 
12/01/2021 Serial Coupon 4.000% 2.190% 
12/01/2022 Serial Coupon 4.000% 2.310% 
12/01/2023 Serial Coupon 2.375% 2.530% 
12/01/2024 Serial Coupon 2.500% 2.670% 
12/01/2025 Serial Coupon 4.000% 2.850% 

Total 

Bid Information 

Par Amount of Bonds 
Reoffering Premium or (Discount) 
Gross Production 

Total Underwriter's Discount (0.850%) 
Bid (103.817%) 

Total Purchase Price 

Bond Year Dollars 
Average Life 
Average Coupon 

Net Interest Cost (NIC) 
True Interest Cost (TIC) 

PROVIDED FOR DISCUSSION ONLY 

Maturity Value 
1,340,000.00 
1,360,000.00 
1,400,000.00 
1,345,000.00 
1,045,000.00 

910,000.00 
945,000.00 
985,000.00 
660,000.00 
675,000.00 
440,000.00 

$11J105,000.00 

Price 
100.867% 
102.614% 
103.288% 
103.560% 
103.610% 
110.606% 
110.787% 
111.465% 
98.829% 
98.590% 

110.304% 

File I NewbergCityBondlssuesVol2aAdjescrowdates.SF I NewbergFF&CSer2015Pri I 6/15/20151 12:48PM 

Dollar Price 
1,351,617.80 
1,395,550.40 
1,446, 032. 00 
1,392,882.00 
1,082,724.50 
1,006,514.60 
1,046,937.15 
1,097,930.25 

652,271.40 
665,482.50 
485,337.60 

$11 ,623,280.20 

$11,105,000.00 
518,280.20 

$11,623,280.20 

$(94,392.50) 
11,528,887.70 

$11,528,887.70 

$49,933.78 
4.497 Years 
3.1739927% 

2.3250929% 
2.2515111% 

13 



$11,105,000 
City of Newberg, Yamhill County, Oregon 
Full Faith & Credit Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Fiscal Total 
06/29/2015 
12/01/2015 1,340,000.00 2.500% 137,644.44 1,477,644.44 
06/01/2016 146,250.00 146,250.00 
06/30/2016 1,623,894.44 
12/01/2016 1,360,000.00 2.500% 146,250.00 1,506,250.00 
06/01/2017 129,250.00 129,250.00 
06/30/2017 1,635,500.00 
12/01/2017 1,400,000.00 2.500% 129,250.00 1,529,250.00 
06/01/2018 111,750.00 111,750.00 
06/30/2018 1,641,000.00 
12/01/2018 1,345,000.00 2.500% 111,750.00 1,456, 750.00 
06/01/2019 94,937.50 94,937.50 
06/30/2019 1,551,687.50 
12/01/2019 1,045,000.00 2.500% 94,937.50 1,139,937.50 
06/01/2020 81,875.00 81,875.00 
06/30/2020 1,221,812.50 
12/01/2020 910,000.00 4.000% 81,875.00 991,875.00 
06/01/2021 63,675.00 63,675.00 
06/30/2021 1,055,550.00 
12/01/2021 945,000.00 4.000% 63,675.00 1,008,675.00 
06/01/2022 44,775.00 44,775.00 
06/30/2022 1,053,450.00 
12/01/2022 985,000.00 4.000% 44,775.00 1,029,775.00 
06/01/2023 25,075.00 25,075.00 
06/30/2023 1,054,850.00 
12/01/2023 660,000.00 2.375% 25,075.00 685,075.00 
06/01/2024 17,237.50 17,237.50 
06/30/2024 702,312.50 
12/01/2024 675,000.00 2.500% 17,237.50 692,237.50 
06/01/2025 8,800.00 8,800.00 
06/30/2025 701,037.50 
12/01/2025 440,000.00 4.000% 8,800.00 448,800.00 
06/30/2026 448,800.00 

Total $11,105,000.00 $1,584,894.44 $12,689,894.44 

PROVIDED FOR DISCUSSION ONLY 
File I Newberg City Bond Issues Vol 2a Adj escrow dates.SF I Newberg FF&C Ser 2015 Pri I 6/15/2015 I 12:48 PM 

14 



$11,105,000 
City of Newberg, Yamhill County, Oregon 
Full Faith & Credit Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 

Sources & Uses 
Dated 06/29/2015 I Delivered 06/29/2015 

Sources Of Funds 
Par Amount of Bonds $11, 105,000.00 
Reoffering Premium 518,280.20 

Total Sources $11,623,280.20 

Uses Of Funds 
Total Underwriter's Discount (0.850%) $94,392.50 
Costs of Issuance 53,385.50 
Deposit to Current Refunding Fund 11,471,005.34 
Rounding Amount 4,496.86 

Total Uses $11,623,280.20 

PROVIDED FOR DISCUSSION ONLY 
File I Newberg City Bond Issues Vol 2a Adj escrow dates.SF I Newberg FF&C Ser 2015 Pri I 6/15/2015 I 12:48 PM 

15 



$11,105,000 
City of Newberg, Yamhill County, Oregon 
Full Faith & Credit Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 

Summary Of Bonds Refunded Part 1 of 2 

Maturity 
Issue Maturity Type of Bond Coupon Value Call Date Call Price 

Dated 1110111999 I Delivered 11/10/1999 
New berg COP Ser 1999A 11/01/2015 Term 1 Coupon 5.400% 195,000 07/19/2015 100.000% 
New berg COP Ser 1999A 11/01/2016 Term2 Coupon 5.800% 205,000 07/19/2015 100.000% 
New berg COP Ser 1999A 11/01/2017 Term 2 Coupon 5.800% 220,000 07/19/2015 100.000% 
New berg COP Ser 1999A 11/01/2018 Term 2 Coupon 5.800% 230,000 07/19/2015 100.000% 
New berg COP Ser 1999A 11/01/2019 Term 2 Coupon 5.800% 245,000 07/19/2015 100.000% 

Subtotal $1,095,000 

Dated 12/01/2013 I Delivered 12/01/2013 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank B98006 12/01/2015 Serial Coupon 5.000% 66,707 07/09/2015 100.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank B98006 12/01/2016 Serial Coupon 5.000% 72,292 07/09/2015 100.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank B98006 12/01/2017 Serial Coupon 5.000% 77,907 07/09/2015 100.000% 

Subtotal $216,906 

Dated 1210112013 I Delivered 12/01/2013 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank K02006 12/01/2015 Serial Coupon 4.100% 247,161 07/09/2015 100.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank K02006 12/01/2016 Serial Coupon 4.250% 258,890 07/09/2015 100.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank K02006 12/01/2017 Serial Coupon 4.375% 270,755 07/09/2015 100.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank K02006 12/01/2018 Serial Coupon 4.500% 282,757 07/09/2015 100.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank K02006 12/01/2019 Serial Coupon 4.600% 294,906 07/09/2015 100.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank K02006 12/01/2020 Serial Coupon 4.700% 307,202 07/09/2015 100.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank K02006 12/01/2021 Serial Coupon 4.750% 319,655 07/09/2015 100.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank K02006 12/01/2022 Serial Coupon 4.750% 337,251 07/09/2015 100.000% 

Subtotal $2,318,577 

Dated 1210112013 I Delivered 12/01/2013 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank G04002 12/01/2015 Serial Coupon 4.000% 211,203 08/13/2015 100.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank G04002 12/01/2016 Serial Coupon 4.100% 222,651 08/13/2015 100.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank G04002 12/01/2017 Serial Coupon 4.200% 229,194 08/13/2015 100.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank G04002 12/01/2018 Serial Coupon 4.300% 240,840 08/13/2015 100.000% 

PROVIDED FOR DISCUSSION ONLY 
File I Newberg City Bond Issues Vol 2a Adj escrow dates.SF I Newberg FF&C Ser 2015 Pri I 6/15/2015 I 12:48 PM 

16 



$11,105,000 
City of Newberg, Yamhill County, Oregon 
Full Faith & Credit Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 

Summary Of Bonds Refunded Part 2 of 2 

Maturity 
Issue Maturity T}'.ee of Bond Coupon Value Call Date Call Price 

Subtotal $903,888 

Dated 12/01/2013 I Delivered 12/01/2013 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank K05007 12/01/2015 Serial Coupon 4.000% 307,390 08/12/2015 102.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank K05007 12/01/2016 Serial Coupon 4.000% 319,486 08/12/2015 102.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank K05007 12/01/2017 Serial Coupon 4.000% 331,665 08/12/2015 102.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank K05007 12/01/2018 Serial Coupon 4.000% 343,932 08/12/2015 102.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank K05007 12/01/2019 Serial Coupon 4.125% 361,289 08/12/2015 102.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank K05007 12/01/2020 Serial Coupon 4.200% 373,817 08/12/2015 102.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank K05007 12/01/2021 Serial Coupon 4.250% 391,497 08/12/2015 102.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank K05007 12/01/2022 Serial Coupon 4.250% 409,324 08/12/2015 102.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank K05007 12/01/2023 Serial Coupon 4.300% 427,270 08/12/2015 102.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank K05007 12/01/2024 Serial Coupon 4.375% 445,378 08/12/2015 102.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank K05007 12/01/2025 Serial Coupon 4.375% 463,675 08/12/2015 102.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank K05007 12/01/2026 Serial Coupon 4.375% 482,117 08/12/2015 102.000% 

Subtotal $4,656,840 

Dated 1210112013 I Delivered 12/01/2013 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank B06001 12/01/2015 Serial Coupon 4.000% 120,763 08/12/2015 102.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank B06001 12/01/2016 Serial Coupon 4.000% 126,593 08/12/2015 102.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank B06001 12/01/2017 Serial Coupon 4.000% 132,457 08/12/2015 102.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank B06001 12/01/2018 Serial Coupon 4.000% 138,355 08/12/2015 102.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank B06001 12/01/2019 Serial Coupon 4.125% 144,290 08/12/2015 102.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank B06001 12/01/2020 Serial Coupon 4.200% 150,292 08/12/2015 102.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank B06001 12/01/2021 Serial Coupon 4.250% 156,354 08/12/2015 102.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank B06001 12/01/2022 Serial Coupon 4.250% 162,474 08/12/2015 102.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank B06001 12/01/2023 Serial Coupon 4.300% 168,642 08/12/2015 102.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank B06001 12/01/2024 Serial Coupon 4.375% 174,873 08/12/2015 102.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank B06001 12/01/2025 Serial Coupon 4.375% 181,180 08/12/2015 102.000% 
New berg Ore Bnd Bank B06001 12/01/2026 Serial Coupon 4.375% 192,544 08/12/2015 102.000% 

Subtotal $1,848,817 
Total $11,040,028 

PROVIDED FOR DISCUSSION ONLY 
File I Newberg City Bond Issues Vol 2a Adj escrow dales.SF I Newberg FF&C Ser 2015 Pri I 6/15/2015 I 12:48 PM 

17 



$11,105,000 
City of Newberg, Yamhill County, Oregon 
Full Faith & Credit Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 

Debt Service Comparison 

Date Total P+I Net New D/S Old Net D/S Savings 
06/30/2015 
06/30/2016 1,623,894.44 1,623,894.44 1,632,774.07 8,879.63 
06/30/2017 1,635,500.00 1,635,500.00 1,639,208.88 3,708.88 
06/30/2018 1,641,000.00 1,641,000.00 1,642,360.60 1,360.60 
06/30/2019 1,551,687.50 1,551,687.50 1,559,284.69 7,597.19 
06/30/2020 1,221,812.50 1,221,812.50 1,312,739.03 90,926.53 
06/30/2021 1,055,550.00 1,055,550.00 1,057,039.21 1,489.21 
06/30/2022 1,053,450.00 1,053,450.00 1,056,783.14 3,333.14 
06/30/2023 1,054,850.00 1,054,850.00 1,059,858.86 5,008.86 
06/30/2024 702,312.50 702,312.50 706,401.02 4,088.52 
0613012025 701,037.50 701,037.50 705,115.81 4,078.31 
06/30/2026 448,800.00 448,800.00 702,583.83 253,783.83 
0613012027 704,177.42 704,177.42 

Total $12,689,894.44 $12,689,894.44 $13, 778,326.56 $1,088,432.12 

PV Analysis Summary (Net to Net) 

Gross Pl/ Debt Service Savings 890,089.05 

Net Pl/ Cashflow Savings @ 2.055%(Bond Yield) 890,089.05 

Contingency or Rounding Amount 4,496.86 
Net Present Value Benefit $894,585.91 

Net Pl/ Benefit/ $11,040,028 Refunded Principal 8.103% 
Net Pl/ Benefit I $11, 105,000 Refunding Principal 8.056% 

Refunding Bond Information 

Refunding Dated Date 6/29/2015 
Refunding Delivery Date 6/29/2015 

PROVIDED FOR DISCUSSION ONLY 
File I Newberg City Bond Issues Vo\ 2a Adj escrow dates.SF I Newberg FF&C Ser2015 Pri I 6/15/2015 I 12:48 PM 

18 



City of Newberg, Yamhill County, Oregon 
Full Faith & Credit Refunding onds, Series 2015 
Current Refunding of Business Oregon Loans (5) 

Debt Service Comparison 

Date Total P+I Net New D/S Old Net D/S 

06/30/2015 
06/30/2016 1,376,461.11 1,376,461.11 1,380,309.07 
06/30/2017 1,386,625.00 1,386,625.00 1,387,953.88 
06/30/2018 1,388,000.00 1,388,000.00 1,388,430.60 
06/30/2019 1,304,687.50 1,304,687 .50 1,308,404.69 
06/30/2020 1,059,812.50 1,059,812.50 1,060,634.03 
06/30/2021 1,055,550.00 1,055,550.00 1,057,039.21 
06/30/2022 1,053,450.00 1,053,450.00 1,056,783.14 
06/30/2023 1,054,850.00 1,054,850.00 1,059,858.86 
06/30/2024 702,312.50 702,312.50 706,401.02 
06/30/2025 701,037.50 701,037.50 705,115.81 
06/30/2026 448,800.00 448,800.00 702,583.83 
0613012027 704,177.42 

Total $11,531,586.11 $11,531,586.11 $12,517,691.56 

PV Analysis Summary (Net to Net) 

Gross Pl/ Debt Service Savings 

Net Pl/ Cashflow Savings @ 2.055%(Bond Yield) 

Contingency or Rounding Amount 
Net Present Value Benefit 

Net Pl/ Benefit I $9,945,028 Refunded Principal 
Net PV Benefit I $10,010,000 Refunding Principal 

Refunding Bond Information 

Refunding Dated Date 
Refunding Delivery Date 

PROVIDED FOR DISCUSSION ONLY 
File I NewbergCityBondlssuesVo\2aAdjescrowdates.SF I NewbergFF&CSer2015Pri I 6/15/2015 I 12:48PM 

Savings 

3,847.96 
1,328.88 

430.60 
3,717.19 

821.53 
1,489.21 
3,333.14 
5,008.86 
4,088.52 
4,078.31 

253,783.83 
704,177.42 

$986, 105.45 

794,332.46 

794,332.46 

2,485.75 
$796,818.21 

8.012% 
7.960% 

6/29/2015 
6/29/2015 

19 



City of Newberg, Yamhill County, Oregon 
Full Faith & Credit Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 
Current Refunding of COP Series 1999 A 

Debt Service Comparison 

Date Total P+I Net New D/S 
06/30/2015 
06/30/2016 247,433.33 247,433.33 
06/30/2017 248,875.00 248,875.00 
06/30/2018 253,000.00 253,000.00 
06/30/2019 247,000.00 247,000.00 
0613012020 162,000.00 162,000.00 

Total $1, 158,308.33 $1, 158,308.33 

PV Analysis Summary (Net to Net) 

Gross Pl/ Debt Service Savings 

Net Pl/ Cashflow Savings @ 2.055%(Bond Yield) 

Contingency or Rounding Amount 
Net Present Value Benefit 

Net Pl/ Benefit I $1,095,000 Refunded Principal 
Net Pl/ Benefit/ $1,095,000 Refunding Principal 

Refunding Bond Information 

Refunding Dated Date 
Refunding Delivery Date 

PROVIDED FOR DISCUSSION ONLY 

Old Net D/S 

252,465.00 
251,255.00 
253,930.00 
250,880.00 
252,105.00 

$1,260,635.00 

File I NewbergCityBondlssuesVol2aAdjescrowdates.SF I NewbergFF&CSer2015Pri I 6/15/2015 I 12:48PM 

Savings 

5,031.67 
2,380.00 

930.00 
3,880.00 

90,105.00 

$102,326.67 

95,756.59 

95,756.59 

2,011.11 
$97,767.70 

8.929% 
8.929% 

6/29/2015 
6/29/2015 

20 



REPORT 

To: Mayor Russ and City Council 

From: Rob Daykin, City Administrator 

Date: January 28, 2016 

Re: Planning Commission Appointment 

There are currently three vacant seats on the Planning Commission. One application has been received 
from Kevin W. Swanson. 

Section 2.16.020 of the Dundee Municipal Code provides for membership qualifications to the 
Planning Commission. Residency of at least one year is required, except that one member may be a 
non-resident provided the member owns real property in the City at least one year prior to the 
appointment. No more than two members shall be engaged in the same kind of occupation, business, 
trade or profession. 

The table below shows the occupation/terms of the current Planning Commission members: 

Isaiah Cox 
Francisco Stoller 
Danny Sikkens 
Michelle Kropf 
Vacant 
Vacant 
Vacant 

Residence 

860 SE Parks Drive 
420 NW 1st Street 
249 SW 9th Street 
10970 NE Red Hills Road* 

Occupation 

Product Developer Manager 
Real Estate Broker 
Executive Director 
Business Manager/Buyer 

*Non-resident, co-owner of Red Hills Market at 155 SW 7th Street. 

Term Ending 
December 31 

2017 
2017 
2017 
2019 
2019 
2019 
2019 

We will continue adve1tising the positions until filled. Councilors are urged to contact prospective 
candidates and encourage them to apply. 2016 should be a busy year for the Planning Commission 
including a review of marijuana facility regulations, industrial design standards and establishment of a 
new Riverside District zone. 

Recommendation: Motion to appoint Kevin W. Swanson to the Dundee Planning Commission. 



Q CITYop 

PLANNING COMMISSION APPLICATION INFORMATION ~~!fNDEE 
Those wishing to serve on the planning commission are asked to complete an eturn the 
form below. Resumes are preferred, but not required . Application should be ma ei , 'E.i'J,PQ 
"Planning Commission Application" and sent to: ·Q 

Rob Daykin, City Administrator JAN 2 8 2016 
City of Dundee c 
PO Box 220 ITY OF DUNDEE 
Dundee, Oregon 97115 

Name~ k(' ..{~Telephone Number ,£8,5-f/.I:-71:9?3 
Address/~ 5'0/ -z:6 Sr; t(7o aox3~ [)vdl?EE 
E-Mail ~~ @?/~&4?;t:Jw8c/ Z)<£ . Cor'f 

- ~ f ;.-/r€f4.IJ4Tr0,0q-L 6F->J.E-:!:, 
Year(s) of Residence '5 A Y7Z.S Job/Occupation rlN•°J rEc *u cAL- Ai2V/SFZ 

Educational Background ZJA0D J:::?2uG£A-5. 
UM/r!Zsi:.r9 KsRcJ. 

J/ ~. 1 ltJG f,raz;../ t/~,y'-

Office Use Only: 
Date of Appointment Term Expires _____ _ 

Signed ____________ , Mayor of Dundee 

Dated this __ day of _____ , 20 __ 


	Agenda February 2, 2016
	5.1 CC Minutes 01.05.2016
	5.2 01.19.2016 CC Workshop
	5.3 Fin Report
	6.1 Manhole Repair Change Order
	6.2 10th Street Project CO
	6.3 City Charter Chapter XI Amendment
	6.4 2016 Council Goals
	7.1 License to Use 12th Street ROW
	7.2 Locust Street Water Line
	7.3 Legal Services Agreement
	7.4 Bond Refunding Analysis
	7.5 PC Appointment

